] INTESA SANPAOLO BANK

Romania

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed by the European Union




CONTENTS PAGE
Statement of responsibility for financial statements preparation
Independent auditors’ report

Income statement 1

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 2
Statement of financial position 3
Statement of charges in the shareholders® equity 4
Statement of cash flows 5

Notes to the financial statements 7-73



STATEMENT
Parsuant to art 30 of Accounting Law no, 82/1991

The yearly financial Statements as at 31 Decembor 2013 were prepared for:

Legal person: BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA 8.A. (“the Bank™)
Counly: 02-ARAD

Address: ARAD, B-DUL REVOLUTIEI, No. 88, TEL.0257-308200

Trade Register no.: J02/22/1006

Type: 34—joint stock companiss

Main ectivity (NACE code and description): 6412—other monstery intermediation actlvities
Fiseal [dentification Code: 8145422

The First Deputy General Manager of the Bank, loan Mihaij Ano, takes responsibility for the preparation
of the ennval financis! statements as at 31 December 2013 and confirms the following:

4} the accounting policies used in the prepaation of the enausl financial statements conmply with the
applicable aceonnting regulations (respectively International Firancial Reporting Stendards as éndorsed

by European. Union);

b} the anmual financial statements. present fairly the financial position, financial performance as well as
the other Informetion regarding the sctivity parformed.

¢} The Bank is & going concem,

Sipmaturg




‘mﬁ KPMG Audit SAL Tel: 4021} 201 2222
-~ = Victoria Business Park +40 (372} 277 800

[RE A REA DN1, Soseaua Bucurssti-Piciesti nr. 83-71 Fox: 40 (21) 2012219

Sector 1 +40 372 377 700
Www.kprmg.to

P.O. Box 18-181

Bucharest 013685

Romanig

Independent Auditors? Report
(free tranglation®)

To the shareholders of
Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo
Romania S.A. (“the Bank™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
DmembaZOlS,thehcomeshbmenLtheshtmmtsofpmﬁtmlmsmdothﬁmmpmhmsiw
incomc,changesmequityandcashﬂowsformeymthmmd&mdnmwmompﬂsmga
summary of ignificent accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
mmhwmrdmcewithmaﬁonalFinmthcporﬁngStmdmﬂsnmdomedbythe
European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
frand or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conductedourmditmmrdmoewﬁhsmndardsmAndiﬁngasadoptedbyﬁmanmian
ChamberofFinmcialAudim.Thosem:hrdsreqﬁmﬂmtwecomplywithuhicd
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain sudit evidence about the amounts and
disclomreshtheﬁnmdﬂsbatments.ﬂepmcedumsdccwddcpmdmomjudgmmn
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
designauditpmoeduresﬁatamappmpﬂﬂemthedrcummncm,bmmfmthepumoseof
cXpressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
wﬂmﬁngtheappmpdamnessofmwmﬁngpoﬁdesusedmdthemsmnblmessofwwmﬁng
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail presentation of the financial
statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtaived is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our sudit opinion.

I TRANSLATOR'S EXPLANATORY NOTE; Tte above translation of the auditors’ report is provided 25 & free
tranelation from Romanian which is the official and binding version.

Fiacal rapistration eacla
037014 KPMQ Audie 2RL, » Rorrenien limited Rabity company and & RO12987278
member fimn of tha KPMG nestwork of independent member firms Trade Ragistry
wttlisted with KPMG imemetionsl Conparative (KPMO 0. MOYA43E2000

Imizrestional), @ Swion miity, AL rights reczned. POE no, 18832 Shawe Capital 2,000 RON



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A.
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2013
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the Bank's shareholders, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's shareholders those matters we are required to
smtewthmanwdim’mpmtmdformotherpmpose.TotheﬁﬂhnMpemiuedby
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's
sharcholders as a body, formlrauditwork,fortheraportonﬁnandalslxtementsandﬂmreport
on conformity or for the opinion we have formed.

Report on conformity of the Administrators® Report with the finaucial statements

In accordance with the Order of the National Bank of Romania no 27/2010 and related
amendments, article no. 16 point (1) €) we have read the Administrators’ Report attached to the
financial statements and presented from page 1 to 12. The Administrators’ Report is not a part
of the financial statements. In the Administrators® Report we have not identified any financial
mfomaﬁmwhichisnmmamzdmce,maﬂmawﬁalmspecm.wﬂhthemfmaﬁmpmsmmd
in the sccompanying financial statements,

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit SR.L.:

Refer to the original signed Refer to the original signed
Romanian version Romanian version

Furtuna Cezar-Gabriel KPMG AUDIT S.R.L.

registered with the Chamber of Finangial registered with the Chamber of Financial

Auditors of Romania under no 1526/20.11,2003
Bucharest, 28 February 2014

Auditors of Romenia under no 9/2001




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA 5.4,

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended at 31 December 2013
(AR amosents ara presented In RON, wiless otherwise stater)

2013 2012
RON RON
Noie-

Inferest income 273,131,138 303,748,965

Interest expensa -124,199,578 -147,001 476

Net interest income 7 148,931,560 186,657,489
Fee end commission income 36.571,938 30,589,857
Feeand commission expense =11.619,460 - 8,057,589
Net fee and commission income 8 24,952,528 21,632,268
Net trading income g 26,765,220 28,335,447
Other income from sale of available for sale financial - A4
MStruments 10 8,212,319 1,044,146
Other operuting income 180885 948851
Net ather operating income 36,786,395 30,829,444
Toral operviting income 220,670,483 209,119,201
Impatrment allowance on loens and advances to _ T
Sl 18 -227,464,164 -154.607,181
Net losses from disposal of assets -1,237,591 -345,489
Net charge / (release) of provisions fur risks and charges. -7426,873 1,444,119
Personnel expenses 1 ~70,013,281 76,599,176
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of tangjble 20, :
und intangible assets and Investment property 21,22 ~13,801,260 4,014,365
Othier operating expenses 12 56,110,689 «60,494262
Loss befare tax -165,384,385 <105487,153
Income tax revens 3 - 47,335
Loss for the year -165,384,385 ~105,449.5818

The financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2014 and wers signed
on i1s behalf by:

loan Mihail An Catnlio de Simone
First Deputy G, Deputy Generrl Manager
Canmgn Baschir

Chief ofAmuﬂﬁli%zm




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMIREHENSIVE INCOME
for the yeur coded at 31 December 2013

{Allomounis are presevited in RON, muless otherwise statet)

2013 20352
RON RON
Loss for the year -165,384,385 -105,449818
Other comprehensive Income, net of income tax
Ttems that are or may be reckssified to profit or Bss.
Revahuation reserve of available-for-sale financial ssseis
Net difference from revaluaiion 2,813,145 1,017,587
Net amount transferred from reserve o profit or logs 799,809 =43 363
Relared taxes =S7R.073 -151,984
Gther comprehensive incoms, ret of tax 3,834 881 822,240
Total comprehensive incoine for fhe year, net of tax —-162,340.504 -104,627,578

The financial statements wers approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2014 and were signed
on its behalf by:

loan Mitieil

Catello de Simone
First Deputy

Deputy Gengral Maneger

Carmen Baschir

Chief of Anmwb\  SAN

.Aempanyiu‘ notes are & inlegyal part ofthese Foanciat stalemaents.




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2053

(Al canaunts are preseted In RON, srtless Oheriise sigted)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central bank
Derivatives held for risk management
Plecements with banks

Loans end advances o custormars
Available for sale financial nstuments
Equity invesimends

Praperty and equipment

Intengible assets

Invesiment properiy

DEeferred tax assets

Othter assers

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Darivatives held for risk management
Deposits from banks
Borrowings from banks
Deposits from costomers
Subordinated loans

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilitiex

Other fiabllitles

TOTAL LIABILITIES
ROQUITY

Share capital and share premium
Accumulated losses

Rescryes

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIFS AND EQIATY

Note

15
17
16
18
I9
15
20
21

24

17
25
27
26
28
29
23
30

31

K|

2013 2012

RON RON
312,008,874 807,395,944
119,217 315,380
144,559,284 47,551,813
3,444 819,875 3,549,268,781
526,811,857 494,571 A70
9.059,504 8,915,186
81,794,831 B9.010,156
23,164,714 13,105,511
21,828,043 22.463.481
15,911,575 15511,575
12,359,105 11,157,09%

5,092,626,879 5,865671,8 71._9-.5_

40,230 366,468
185,549,400 575,405,791
936,044,625 - 1,036,599.873

3,159,091.716 2,495,387,038
31,445,115 31,055,582
25,804,845 19,368,325
730,057 151,984
27224914 17,291,354

4,365,930,902 4,176,626,415

1,178,443,100 1,178,443,100
-482,930,820 -317,546,50%

31,185,767 28,148,886
726,695,977 889,045,481
5092,626879  _ 5065,671,896

The financlal statements were approved by the Board of Direstors og 27 February 2014 gnd were signed

onits behalfhy:

[oam Mihafl Anca
First Deputy General

Carmen Baschir

Chief of m

Catello de Siinone
Deputy G [ Manager
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended at 31 December 2013

(Al amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization and impairment of tangible,

intangible assets and investment property
Net loss on impairment of financial assets

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through

profit and loss
Other non-cash adjustments

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and

liabilities

Changes in operating assets:

Increase in securities available for sale
Increase in loans and advances to customers
Increase/ (decrease) in other assets

Change in operating liabilities:

Decrease in deposits from banks

Increase in deposits from customers
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Income from sale of tangible assets
Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets
Acquisition of equity investments

Dividends received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings from banks

Proceeds from borrowings from banks
Repayments of subordinated loans

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note 2012
-165,384,385 -105,497,153
20,21,

22 13,801,260 24,014,365
18 227,464,164 154,607,181
-129.575 198,268
11,039,503 1325413
74,711,961 72,997,248
128,727,432 21,504,867
-123,015.258 -207,159,691
4.797.993 3,024,704
-340,455,666 17,526,346
662,704,678 333,104,036
16,948,152 -203,326

266,964,428 156,682,350
102,304 4,490,653
-16,107,004 -9.779,212
-11,020 -169,570
306,093 170,598
115,709,627 -5,287,531
-261,661,900 -36,591,821
112,117,500 ;
. 65,611,500

-149,544,400 -102,203321
101,710,401 49,191,498
854,947,757 805,756,259
32 956,658,158 854,947,757

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
STATEMENT OF CASE FLOWS

for the year ended ot 31 December 2013
{AfL amounjs gre prasestsd lir RON, pnless otharwise steied)

Cash flows from operating activities include:

Insterest received
Interest paid

-234,.340,050 316,623,277
116,545,330 ~161,077,558

Catello De Simone
Deputy General Manzger

[ A —

Arcompaoying notex ura an integral part of thess financial starerients.




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

{all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A. ("the Bank") was established in Romania in December
1996, originally under the name "West Bank" and is accredited by the National Bank of Romania to
perform banking activities. The bank changed its name from "West Bank" to "Sanpaclo IMI Bank
Romania" after approval by the National Bank of Romania on 16 October 2003 and finally in " Intesa
Sanpaolo Romania Commercial Bank " after approval by the National Bank of Romania on 14 January
2008 as a result of the merger between Banca Intesa and Sanpaoclo IMI.

According to the decision of the Extraordinary General Meetings of Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo
Romania S.A. and Banca CR Firenze Romania S.A. the Bank Shareholders dated 18 June 2012, at 30
September 2012 took place the merger of the banks in the form prescribed in Article 238 paragraph (1)
letter a) of the Companies Law 31/1990 with subsequent amendments and, therefore, Banca CR Firenze
Romania SA as absorbed company was incorporated in Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania SA
as the absorbing company. Following the merger, the share capital increased by 72,528,300 RON from
814,111,110 RON to 886,639,410 RON by issuing a number of 7,252,830 new shares, with the nominal
value of 10 RON / share, which were allocated by Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze SpA and Intesa
Sanpaolo Holding International SA, as shareholders of Banca CR Firenze Romania S.A.

The share capital as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is in amount of RON 886.639.410, with
the following structure:
» Intesa Sanpaolo SpA, major sharcholder, which owns 81,096,905 shares in amount of RON
810,969,050, representing 91.47% of the Bank’s share capital;
= CASSA DI RISPARMIO DI FIRENZE SpA, which owns 7,252,825 shares in amount of RON
72,528,250, representing 8.18% of the share capital;
* INTESA SANPAOLO HOLDING INTERNATIONAL S.A., which owns 314,211 shares in
amount of RON 3,142,110, representing 0.35% of the share capital.

The Bank's main activity is to provide banking services to companies and individuals. These include
opening deposit, local and abroad payments, foreign exchange operations, credit lines, medium term
facilities, letters of guarantee, letters of credit and financing micro enterprises and small and medium
enterprises which are operating in Romania etc.

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank had 44 branches, 32 agencies, resulting a total of 76 units plus the
headquarters and a total number of 823 employees.

The headquarters of the Bank is located at the following address: Revolution Boulevard no. 88, Arad,
Romania.

In 2013, the average number of employees was 848 (2012: 867).

The Board of Directors of the Bank comprises 6 members elected by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2013, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises the following members:

1. Giovanni Ravasio president
2. Ezio Salvai member
3. Giampiero Trevisan member
4.Giulio Ponti member
5. Marina Tabacco member
6. Luca Finazzi member




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLQ ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(@il amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

1. REPORTING ENTITY (contirued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises the following members:

1. Giovanni Ravasio president
2. Ioan Mihail Anca member*
3. Giampiero Trevisan member
4, Massimo Pierdichi member
5. Marina Tabacco member

*) Member of Management Committee

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1. Statement of Compliance

As at 31 December 2013 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union (IFRS).

The Bank’s interest in the share capital of Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing Romania TFN SA did not change,
being in amount of RON 8,745 thousands. The shareholders structure of the leasing company is the
following:
Intesa Sanpaoclo Romania S.A. owns a number of 597 shares of RON 1,800 per share,
representing 99.49% of share capital;
- CIB Lizing Zrt. owns a number of 3 shares of 1,800 RON per share, representing 0.51% of share
capital.

From the Romanian accounting perspective, the Bank is exempt to prepare consolidated financial
statements, complying with stipulations as per paragraph 31 b from the accounting Regulations of IFRS,
approved by the Order of the National Bank of Romania no. 27/2010, fulfilling the cumulative conditions
stipulated on paragraph 32 and 33 from the same Regulations and in accordance with National Bank of
Romania communication number I11/5698/07.01.2010. From prudential perspective, the Bank must issue
the consolidated financial statements, according to the NBR Order no. 1/2011 for the approval of the
methodological standards regarding the issuance of financial statements according to IFRS. The National
Bank of Romania confirmed this statement through the letter no. IV/2/17971/14.01.2010.

According to IAS 27, a parent need not present consolidated financial statements if and only if:

» the parent is itself @ wholly-owned subsidiary, or is a partially-owned subsidiary of another entity and
its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote, have been informed about, and do not
object to, the parent not presenting consolidated financtial statements;

o the parent’s debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock
exchange or an over-the-counter market, including local and regional markets);

¢ the ultimate or any immediate parent of the producers consolidated financial statements available for
public use that comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;

e the parent did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a securities
commission or other regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in a
public market.

The parent society which issues the consolidated financial statements is INTESA SANPAOLO SpA,
located in Italy, 10121 Torino, Piazza San Carlo no. 156.

The annual consolidated financial statements are available for public view on INTESA’s website (www.
group. intesasanpaclo.com). The Bank fulfils the above criteria through the membership to Intesa
Sanpaolo Spa which prepares and publishes financial statements in accordance with IFRS.




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amonnts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continue
2.2, Basis of measurement

The Bank's accounting records are maintained in RON, according to accounting legislation in Romania,
as well as banking regulations in force issued by the National Bank of Romania.

The financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis for derivative instruments, the financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial instruments available for sale, except
those for which fair value cannot be determined reliably.

Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortized cost,
historical cost or revaluated amount.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
2.3.  Functional and presentation currency

Management believes that functional currency as defined by IAS 21 ("Effects of exchange rate changes")
is RON. The financial statements are presented in RON.

24, Use of estimates and judgments

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS as endorsed by the European Union requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors considered being eloquent in the actual circumstances
and the result of these factors form the basis of judgments used in determining the camrying amount of
assets and liabilities for which there are no other sources available evaluation. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and judgments are reviewed periodically. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods affected, if
the revision affects both current period and future periods.

Information about the significant estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are disclosed in Notes 5 and 6.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the significant accounting policies as
set out in Note 4 to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The Bank has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013:

a) IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 established a single measurement framework for fair value measurement. IFRS 13
does not modify the requirements for fair value measurement, instead it offers additional
guidance on how the fair value should be measured in accordance with IFRS, when it is
permitted or required. The adoption of the new standards affects the presentation of the fair
value disclosures. These new disclosure requirements are not included in the comparative
information. However, to the extent that disclosures were required by other standards before
the effective date of IFRS 13, the Bank has provided the relevant comparative disclosures
under those standards.




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b) Ammendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Items of OCI

As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the Bank has modified the presentation of items of
OCl in its statement of profit or loss and OCI, to present items that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future separately from those that would never be. Comparative
information has been re-presented on the same basis.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These significant accounting policies adopted and applied by the Bank as set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

In respect of comparative information, certain items from the financial statements as at 31 December
2012 have been reclassified to conform to current presentation.

a) Business combination with entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interest in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the both entities are accounted for as of the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was
established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised
at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the consolidated financial statements ended at 31
December 2012.

In preparing the Bank’s first tinancial statements in accordance with IFRSs as endorsed by the European
Union, the following methods have been applied:

e Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 is presented for Banca Comerciala Intesa
Sanpaolo 8.A., while balance sheet as at 31 December 2011 repregent the sum of balance sheet of
the merged banks (Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A. and Banca CR Firenze
Romania S.A), out of which intra-group amounts were eliminated;

¢ Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012 is presented for Banca
Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo S.A. and Banca CR Firenze Romania S.A., while the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 represent the sum of the Statements of
comprehensive income of the merged banks (Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A,
and Banca CR Firenze Romania 5.A), out of which intra-group transactions were eliminated.

b)  Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the bank at exchange rates
at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
statement of financial position date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to the functional currency at
exchange rates at the dates the fair value was determined.

The exchange rates of major foreign currencies were:

10




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)  Foreign currency (continued)

Currency 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 %
Euro (EUR) 1: RON 4.4847 1: RON 4.4287 +1.25%
US Dollar (USD) 1: RON 3.2551 1: RON 3,3575 -3.16%

¢) Accounting for the effect of hyperinflation

Romania has previously experienced relatively high levels of inflation and was considered to be
hyperinflationary as defined by IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” (“IAS
297). IAS 29 requires that the financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy are restated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of reporting period (i.e. non-
monetary items are restated using a general price index from the date of acquisition or contribution).

As the characteristics of the economic environment of Romania indicate that hyperinflation has ceased,
effective from 1 January 2004 the Bank no longer applied the provisions of IAS 29.

Accordingly, the amounts expressed in the measuring unit current at 31 December 2003 are treated as the
basis for the carrying amounts in these financial statements.

d) Interest incomes and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter
period) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider future credit losses.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and commissions, paid or received,
transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of
a financial asset or liability.

e¢)  Fees and commissions

Fees and commission income and expenses that are directly attributable to the financial asset or liability
origination are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income arising on the financial services provided by the Bank is recognized as
the related service is provided.

Other fees and commission expense relates mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as
the services are received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p  Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive income is established. Dividends are reflected as
a component of other operating income in the Income Statement.

Dividends are treated as an appropriation of profit in the period they are declared and approved by the
Shareholders General Assembly.

g  Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense,
over the term of the lease.

h) Net trading income

This category comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities and derivatives held for
risk management, and includes all realized and unrealized fair value changes and foreign exchange
differences.

i) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior periods.

Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. A deferred tax asset is recognized for
unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as
the liability to pay the related dividend.

The tax rate used to calculate the current and deferred tax position at 31 December 2013 is 16% (31
December 2012: 16%).

¥ Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Recognition

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including assets
and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at
which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

¥/, Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(ii) Derecognition

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

When the Bank sells a financial asset and simultaneously signs a repurchase agreement of the asset (or a
similar asset) at a fixed price and at a time set ("repo™), the contract is recorded as a loan from banks and
asset to which it relates continues to be recognized in the balance Bank.

The Bank enters into a transaction that transfers assets recognized on the balance sheet, but retains either
all risks or rewards of the transferred assets or a part thereof. If all or substantially all risks and rewards
are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the balance sheet. Transfers of assets
with retention of all or most significant risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending or sale
transactions with repurchase clause.

For transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset, the asset is derecognizes if it was lost control over it.

The rights and obligations retained afier the transfer are recognized separately as assets and liability,
respectively. In transfers where control over the asset is retained, the Bank continues to recognize the
asset to the extent that remains involved, the degree of involvement is determined by the degree to which
the Bank is exposed to changes in value of the asset transferred.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Bank uses the specific identification method to determine the gain or loss on derecognition.

(iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and
intends to seitle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting siandards, or for gains and
losses arising from a group of similar transactions.

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method, of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

(v) Fair value measurement

Policy applicable from I January 2013

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

¥/ Financial assets and Habilities (continued)
(v) Fair value measurement (continued)

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of traded financial intruments on an active market is based on the mid price (stock markets,
dealer markets, broker markets) or on the mid price established by the broker/dealer which is posted
through electronic information posting platforms (Bloomberg, Reuters), with no deduction for
transactioning costs.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation
technique. Valuation techniques include pricing modeis and discounted cash flows. The cash flows
estimated are determined based on the management’s best estimate and market discount rate as at the
reporting date for a similar instrument. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market
expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument. Where a fair
value cannot be estimated reliably for a financial instrument that is not traded on an active market, the
financial instrument is valued at cost and is tested for impairment as at the reporting date.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date or change in
circumstances in which the change has occurred.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2013

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations for financial instruments traded in active markets. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis.

If 2 market for a financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation
technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analyses and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique
makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Bank,
incorporates all available factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is
consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation
techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in
the financial instrument.

The best evidence of fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of the instrument is evidence by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.

Where a fair value cannot be reliably estimated, unquoted equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market are measured at cost and periodically tested for impairment.
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4. SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

§/] Financial assets and labilities (continued)
(vi) Identification and measurement of impairment

The Bank assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss
are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event') and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. It may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event
that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect of several events may have caused the
impairment. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.

Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan, receivable or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance
account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease is related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and advances to customers

The Bank, based on its internal impairment assessment methodology, has included observable data on the
following loss events that comes to its attention as objective evidence that loans and advances to
customers or groups of loans to customers are impaired:

a)  significant financial difficulty of the borrower such as breach of contract, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments of the borrowers (individually and in the same group of borrowers);

b)  the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider such as the rescheduling of
the interest or principal payments;

c)  isbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

d)  observable data indicating that there are economic or social conditions that can influence adversely
the industry in which the borrower operates and that affect these borrowers.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists as described above individually
for loans and advances to customers that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
loans that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for individually assessed loans and advances to customers, whether significant or not, it
includes the loans and advances to customers in a group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Loans and advances to customers that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1} Financial assets and labilities (continued)

(vi} Identification and measurement of impairment (continued)

included in a collective assessment of impairment. The calculation of the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of a collateralised loan reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans and advances to customers are grouped on
the basis of similar credit risk (size, debt service on the reporting date, type of customer, sector, and type
of product) characteristics that are indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms.

Future cash flows in a group of loans to customers that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical probability of default and estimations regarding loss given default for
loans with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical probability of defanit
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions
that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently. The management estimates are based on the
visible effects of current loans conditions. Significant changes in financial markets may generate
significant adjustments on loss rates.

Available for sale financial assets

For financial assets classified as available-for-sale, when a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognized directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized directly in equity shall be removed from equity
and recognized in profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss shall be the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available for sale shall not be reversed through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

(vii}  Designation at fair value through profit or loss

The Bank designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss when either:
o the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis;
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

¥ Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(vii) Designation at fair value through profit or loss

o the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise; or

o the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

k)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, balances held with central banks and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

/) Trading assets and liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short-term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position with transaction costs taken directly to profit or loss. All changes in fair
value are recognised as part of net trading income in profit or loss. Trading assets and liabilities are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 the Bank does not have trading assets and liabilities.

m)  Derivatives held for risk management purposes

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not
classified as trading assets or liabilities or hedging instruments. Derivatives held for risk management
purposes are initially recognised at fair value. After their initial recognition, derivatives are subsequently
measured at their fair values without any deduction for transactions costs to be incurred on sale or
disposal. The changes in the fair value of such instruments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a component of Net trading income.

n)  Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and that the Bank does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term.

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest rate method as described in the
Note 4.d. above, except when the Bank chooses to carry the loans and advances at fair value through
profit or loss as described in accounting policy (j) (vii) see above. Loans and advances are presented net
of impairment allowance (see accounting policy (j) (vi) see above).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0}  Investment securities

(i) Held-to-maturity

Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs and
subsequently accounted depending on their classification as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated
at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any sale
or reclassification of a significant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity
would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and prevent
the Bank from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two
financial years.

However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not trigger a
reclassification: sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of
interest would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value; sales or reclassifications
after the Bank has collected substantially all of the asset’s original principal; sales or reclassifications
attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Bank’s control that could not have been
reasonably anticipated.

(ii) Available for sale

Auvailable-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not designated as another category
of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at
cost. All other available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognised, as other operating income, in profit or loss when the Bank becomes entitled to the dividend.
Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognised in profit
or loss.

Other fair value changes are recognised directly in equity until the investment is sold or impaired and the
balance in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

p)  Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are stated at their cost or revaluated amount less accummlated
depreciation value and impairment losses.

(ii) Subseguent costs

The Bank recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
p) Property and equipment (continued)

(ii) Subsequent costs
costs are recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Economic useful life in years

Buildings 10-50
Office equipment, lightning and accessories 3-15
Other assets 5

Improvements in rented premises are depreciated over the rental agreements periods for the Bank’s
premises.

g}  Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lives (no
more than 5 years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an
expense when incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Bank, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line method
over their useful lives (no more than 5 years), from the date that is available for use.

Subsequent expenditure on software is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

v} Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v) Investment property (continued)

for administrative purposes. The Bank accounts for investment property using the cost model (less
impairment).

s} Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than investment property and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash
flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

7} Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

u}  Borrowings and other liabilities evidenced by paper

Borrowings such as loans from banks and other financial institutions and other liabilities evidenced by
paper such as subordinated loans or bonds issued are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue
proceeds (fair value of consideration received) net of transaction costs occurred. Borrowings and other
liabilities evidenced by paper are subsequently stated at amortised cost.

v)  Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. A provision for restructuring is

20



BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

{all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)  Provisions (continued)

recognised when the Bank has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring
either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.

w)  Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-
specified terms and conditions,

Financial guarantee or loan commitments are initially recognised at their fair value, and the initial fair
value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee or the commitment. The liability is subsequently
carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment (when a
payment under the guarantee has become probable).

x}  Employee benefits

(i)  Short term benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions. Short-
term employee benefits are recognised as expense when services are rendered.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Bank, in the normal course of business makes payments to the Romanian State funds on behalf of its
Romanian employees for pension, health care and unemployment benefit. All employees of the Bank are
members and are also legally obliged to make defined contributions (included in the social security
contributions) to the Romanian State pension plan (a State defined contribution plan). All relevant
contributions to the Romanian State pension plan are recognised as an expense in the income statement as
incurred. The Bank does not have any further obligations.

The Bank does not operate any independent pension scheme and, consequently, have no obligation in
respect of pensions. The Bank does not operate any other post retirement benefit plan. The Bank has no
obligation to provide further services to current or former employees.

(iii} Emplyment termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Bank is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancy are recognised as an expense if the
Group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the
reporting date, than they are discounted to their present value.

¥} Segment reporting

During 2012, the Bank performed banking transactions delivered mostly on the Romanian market. The
management considers that the inherent risks and benefits specific to the banking activity are not
significantly different between the categories of clients as well as between various geographical regions,
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

y)  Segment reporting (continued)

and consequently does not believe identifying separate reportable segments is necessary and would
provide any additional benefits. Please see note 5 for the structure of loans portfolio per industry.

z} New standars and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements:

A. Standards that have been adopted by the European Union

Amendments to TAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014; earlier application is permitted)

The Amendments do not introduce new rules for offsetting financial assets and liabilities; rather they
clarify the offsetting criteria to address inconsistencies in their application.

The Amendments clarify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if that right is:

. not contingent on a future event; and

. enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.

The Bank does not expect the Amendments to have any impact on the financial statements since it does

not apply offsetting to any of its financial assets and financial liabilities and it has not entered into master

netting arrangements.

Amendments to JAS 36 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014; earlier application is permitted)

The Amendments clarify that recoverable amount should be disclosed only for individual assets
(including goodwill) or cash-generated units for which an impairment loss was recognised or reversed
during the period.

The Amendments also require the following additional disclosures when an impairment for individual
assets (including goodwill) or cash-generated units has been recognised or reversed in the period and
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs to disposal:

. the level of IFRS 13 ‘Fair value hierarchy’ within which the fair value measurement of the asset
or cash-generating unit is categorised;

. for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a
description of the valuation techniques used and any changes in that valuation technique together
with the reason for making it;

. for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and Level 3, each key assumption (i.e.

assumptions to which recoverable amount is most sensitive) used in determining fair value less
costs of disposal. If fair value less costs of disposal is measured using a present value technique,
discount rate(s) used both in current and previous measurement should be disclosed.

The Bank does not expect the new Standard will have a impact on the financial statements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

z) New standars and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

B. Standards that have not been adopted by the European Union

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Effective date not yet determined)

This Standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
about classification and measurement of financial assets. The Standard eliminates the existing JAS 39
categories of held to maturity, available for sale and loans and receivable.

Financial assets will be classified into one of two categories on initial recognition: financial assets
measured at amortized cost; or financial assets measured at fair value.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the following two conditions are met: the assets is held
within a business mode]l whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and,
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding. Gains and losses on remeasurement of financial assets measured at
fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that for an investment in an equity instrument which is
not held for trading, [FRS 9 provides, on initial recognition, an irrevocable election to present all fair
value changes from the investment in other comprehensive income (OCI). The election is available on an
individual share-by-share basis. No amount recognised in OCI is ever reclassified to profit or loss at a
later date.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact that IFRS 9 could have on the financial statements.
Additions to TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Effective date not yet determined)

The 2010 additions to IFRS 9 replace the guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, about classification and measvrement of financial liabilities and the derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The Standard retains almost all of the existing requirements from
IAS 39 on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The Standard requires that the amount of change in fair value attributable to changes in the credit risk of a
financial liability designated at initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss, be presented in other
comprehensive income (OCI), with only the remaining amount of the total gain or loss included in profit
or loss. However, if this requirement creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then
the whole fair value change is presented in profit or loss. Amounts presented in OCI are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss but may be transferred within equity.

The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact that IFRS 9 (Additions) could have on the financial
statements,

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

(=) Introductien

This note provides details of the Bank's exposure to risk and describes the methods used by management
to control the risks. The most important types of financial risk to which the Bank is exposed are credit
risk, liquidity risk, market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk, counterparty risk). The bank is also
exposed to reputational risk, strategic risk, operational risk and risk related to taxation.

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(A) Introduction (continued)

measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is
critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. The Bank's policy is to monitor those business risks through the Bank’s strategic
planning process.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is the last responsible for identifying and controlling risks, yet there are separate
and independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks, The Bank conducts its entire
business on the principles of corporate governance. The Board of Directors and the Management
Committee are independent and separate structures.

Board of directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the
risk management strategies and principles.

Management Committee

The management committee has the responsibility to monitor the overall risk process within the bank,
Credit Committee

Credit Committee (CC) is a permanent decisional committee, acting within delegations and competencies
established by the Board of Directors. Credit Committee is the highest deliberative body in lending
activities - within the limits set by the Board of Directors of the Bank and except the competence of the
Asset Quality Committee - and has the right to sub-delegation.

Agsets Quality Committee

Assets Quality Committee ("AQC") is a permanent decisional committee, acting within delegations and
competencies established by the Board of Directors, aiming on taking measures to prevent and reduce
losses stemming from lending activity. AQC is the highest deliberative body in all other aspects of
crediting that is not in the competence of the loan and has the right to sub-delegation.

Financial Risk Committee

The main objective of the Financial Risk Committee is to protect the Bank's own funds and their
allocation, to align the Bank's assets and liabilities taking into account the pricing structure and maturity
profile in accordance with law, rules and regulations of the National Bank of Romania, internal Bank’s
structures and its parent company as they were adopted by the Bank. Financial Risk Committee ensures
continuous monitoring and control of the Bank's exposure to market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk, risk related to shares, property risk and currency risk.

Operational Risk Committee

Operational Risk Committee proposes approves and verifies aspects of operational risk issuing opinions
where is required by law, by parent company or by corporate bodies. Regarding operational risk issues,
the main objective of the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in reviewing the overall
operational risk profile of the Bank. Operational risk is the risk of loss due to inadequacy or error process,
human resources and internal systems or due to external events. Operational risk also includes legal risk
and compliance risk (if associated with legal or administrative sanctions). Legal compliance risk
component is also included in the category of operational risk.
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk identification system

Credit risk is defined as the current or future risk to earnings and capital adversely affected as a result of
faiture by the debtor of its contractual obligations or failure in meeting the objectives.

Credit risk identification, monitoring, control and administration are activities performed both at the level
of the territorial units and Head Office.

The main purpose of the monitoring process of the credit portfolio is to supervise its quality by an early
identification (either manual or automatic) of those risk factors, negative symptoms or detrimental events
which may affect the creditworthiness of the counterparty, its debt repayment capacity and, as the case
may be, the value of the guarantees/ collaterals/ their enforceability.

The frequency of mornitoring activities shall be determined depending on the risk profile of the
counterparty, the availability and accuracy of information.

The persons assigned to the task within the territorial units and/or the specialized staff of the structures
with competencies in credit management, have the obligation to analyze and watch the manner in which
loan drawings are used, the compliance with the conditions considered in their approval, throughout the
loan period, monitoring the reimbursing modality, as well as the status of the reimbursement sources etc.
and immediately notifying of any anomaly to the Head Office competent structures, in line with the
specific provisions implemented by the Bank.

The monitoring process consists of three different streams:
o Daily monitoring (identification of risk exposures);

e Periodic monitoring activities (at least once a month);
s Portfolio monitoring.

Daily Monitoring

During the last quarter of 2012, the Bank implemented a specific process dedicated to the identification
and adequate management of exposures with increased level of risk, which is carried out with a support of
a specific IT application called “Clients with risk™.

The daily relationship with the counterparty and the continuous support provided by the early warning
system (supported by the IT application “Clients with risk™) implemented by the Bank are the basis of the
identification of risky exposures in the Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A. portfolio. The
commercial units that manage the crediting relationship with the counterparties are responsible for the
detection of negative events (negative symptoms/ detrimental events).

Potential problems or future critical situations can only be detected by a regular and systematic
monitoring of daily transactions and by knowledge of the client, as well as by a detailed analysis of the
most frequent symptoms which indicate an abnormality.

When negative symptoms or detrimental events are identified, a detailed counterparty analysis is
necessary for the above mentioned clients that could result in the classification of the counterparty
exposure to “problem” or “nonperforming” category, as per stipulations of the dedicated process for risky
and nonperforming exposures management.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continned)

Portfolio performance evaluation is done on a daily basis (using information from the previous day),
based on negative symptoms detectable in the Bank’s database and information available in the morning
through the Credit Risk Bureau. Based on this evaluation, customers are classified into two categories,
namely, high risk or low risk based on the score obtained by correlating all available information on
internal and external database.

This evaluation process materializes into concrete action customized as automatic notification, based on
email, of the persons involved in connection with measures that need to be taken.

Periodic monitoring

Based on the results of the monitoring and control activities carried out concerning creditworthiness of
the client, his payment behaviour, as recorded in specific documents implemented by the competent
structures of the Bank, the commercial units make proposals of measures, which are submitted to the
approval of the hierarchical superior and/or to other competent authorities in this respect.

After their approval, the measures established shall be communicated in writing to the counterparty with a
view to their application.

This phase of the monitoring process is the responsibility of the Risk Management Department and it is
conducted under specific regulations developed by this structure.

The monitoring activities of the Bank portfolio take into consideration at least:

v The quality of the Bank’s portfolio of assets (special attention is paid to the portfolio of
nonperforming loans);

v" The qualitative evolution of the portfolio of assets in comparison to the approved budget and
business plan;

v The concentration risk (depending on the type of product, field of activity, market, currency for
granting credit facilities, the group of clients interrelated etc).

v Determining the necessary allowance for impairment for identified related to loans risks

Collection and workout process

The main target of the collection and recovery process is to ensure a proper and timely management of
those counterparties which, due to their characteristics or external reasons, may present various degrees of
financial and/or economic difficulties with subsequent potential/ actual deterioration of their
creditworthiness.

During the collection and recovery process, the following main steps were identified:

a) .,Soft” collection activities
This phase includes all those actions/interventions in client service that:
1. Records outstanding payments to the Bank, and interventions aim to mantain/ restore it to
“performing”
2. Encounter financial/economic difficulties, even if payments to Bank are performed according to
agreed graphics, interventions regarding the increase in the counterparty’s risk level.

This type of collection activity aim to identify solutions to overcome, if necessary, the difficulties met by
the counterparties, issued by commercial units that manage the counterparty relationship, and may benefit
from the Credit/Credit Recovery Department.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a) ,Soft” collection activities (continued)
An effective collection process involves managing counterparties based on activities/strategies, enabling:
1. Homogenous and coherent management of exposures with similar/comparable risk profile;
2. Optimization for necessary time to renegociate the contractual terms stipulated in the relationship
with the counterparty;
3. Structured monitoring of the portfolio regarding the efficient testing of the strategies applied;
4. Better monitoring of resort structures from the Central Bank towards the commercial units.

The most relevant activities that involve this phase are:
1. Contacting the counterparty (by phone, via e-mail, text etc) as soon as the exposure is identified
as a risk.
2. Contacting the client (if the outstanding is not paid in a reasonable period of time, the debtor will
be notified regarding all the relevant aspects).

b) Action plan
If after the preliminary activities performed, (phone calls, notifications, visits etc) the situation of the
counterparty does not become regular, and if based on the information received from the counterparty it
results that new regularization methods are required, then all commercial units wiil define an action plan,
with the following puroposes:

1. Payment of the outstanding amount towards the Bank (short term objective) and

2. Preventing the outstanding situation, by implementing medium/long term objectives.

In this regard, 4 main stages were identified in managing risk exposures:
= Counterparty assessment,
* Action plan proposal;
=  Approval and implementation of the action plan
*  Monitoring,.

¢) Recovery activities (,,hard collection™)

The main methods to recover the receivables resulting from the lending activity are:
1. Extrajudicial recovery
2. Judicial recovery.

Both methods are usually activated when the debtor’s worthiness is seriously and irreversibly damaged,
the purpose being to identify the bes strategy for recovering the exposure.

The process may include:

- Restructuring the counterparty’s credit exposure (replacement of the exposure),

- Amicably recovery by identifying the potential sources of repayment (usually others than the
ones sustained by the debtor’s economic-financial performance), that may involve the debtor, and
also the co-debtors, guarantees, third parties.

Enforcement recovery by all means, including over the guarantees issued in the Bank’s favor.
Recovery by including the receivables in a portfolio offered for sale to third parties.

- Moving the assets in the receivables account, followed by selling the assets or transfering the
assets to other entities;

- Recovery during the insovlency procedure.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Riscul de credit (continuare)
The Bank has defined the following methods of achieving the replacement operations:

o Loans rescheduling: the method by which the Bank modifies the intermediary maturity
and/or the payment of one/or more loan rates, without exceeding the initial loan period.

e Loans rescheduling - prolongation: the method by which the Bank changes the maturity
and/or the payment of one/or more rates, by exceeding the initial period of the loan and/or by
classifying the loan in a different category (medium/long term).

¢ Loan refinancing: the Bank grants a new cash credit facility to reimburse the the
partial/complete loan/loans owned by the applicant/counterparty.

s Conversion of the revolving loans in non revolving loans, a method characterized by
eliminating the revolving character of the loan and by switching to a medium or long term
product.

The main methods of extrajudicial recovery offered by the Bank are:
¢ Payment convention
Novation
Subrogation
Recovery assignment
Taking over the debt
Payment
Amicably valorification of the guarantees and/or the debtor’s assets

When any amicable method of recovering the exposure is ineffective, the Credit Recovery Department
analyses and applies the decision of the competent authority to initiate legal procedures against the
debtor/third parties, that represent the last solution for the Bank to recover the receivables.

The loan files regarding the exposures classified as ,,Doubtful” (debtors in legal procedures or insolvent)
are transfered to the Credit Recovery Department for the process of recovery.

In these situations, the Commercial Units have a supporting role, by providing any information/
assistance required by the Credit Recovery Department in defining and implementing the action/strategy
plan approved by the Competent Bodies.

Counterparty’s creditworthiness assessment is performed, which could result in the classification of the
counterparty exposure to “problem” or “nonperforming” category thus allowing evaluating the best
strategy in order to:

- minimize the risk of losses for credit facilities which are still performing;

- maximize the recovery of outstanding exposure for nonperforming loans.

The Credit Recovery Department supervise, and monitor the whole process in order to ensure the
efficiency of the defined/approved strategies.

The Bank adopted starting 2012 the following rules for ciassification of its debtors in accordance with
IFRS standards as endorsed by the European Union and aligned with main shareholder requirements and
the Bank of Italy:
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

* Nonperforming Loans. This definition applies to exposures that fall under the following
classification:

- Doubtful: Balance and off-balance sheet exposures (loans, letters of guarantees, derivatives etc.)
to borrowers being effectively insolvent (although not yet legally) or in comparable status,
regardless of any loss forecasts made by the Bank. Irrespective, therefore, of whether any
(real/tangible or personal) guarantees that may have been established to cover the exposures.

- Substandard: Balance and off-balance sheet exposures (loans, letters of guarantees, derivatives
etc.) to borrowers experiencing temporary objective financial or economic difficulties that are

likely to be overcome in a reasonable period of time. Irrespective of whether any (real/tangible or
personal) guarantees that have been established to cover the exposures.

- Restructured: Balance and off-balance sheet exposures (loans, letters of guarantees, derivatives
etc.) where the Bank (or a pool of banks) renegotiates the original terms of a debt due to
deterioration of the creditworthiness of the debtor (for example by granting a payment
moratorium or by decreasing the debt or the interests). If such renegotiation results in a loss, the
exposure will be classified as restructured.

Past due: Balance and off-balance sheet exposures (loans, letters of guarantees, derivatives, etc)
other than those classified as doubtful, substandard or restructured that, as at reporting date, are
past due for over 90 days.

¢ Performing loans. Balance and off-balance sheet exposures (loans, securities, derivatives etc.) other
than those classified as doubtful, substandard, restructured or past due.
Performing loans could be divided in two sub-categories, respectively:

Performing —Standard: This refers to all the exposures without any anomalies attached, or with
anomalies that do not require management in accordance with the principles defined for the
classification of Problem Loans. From a portfolio management point of view, these exposures fall
under the responsibility of the commercial structure responsible and are managed in accordance
with normal/ordinary credii granting and monitoring processes.

- Performing (watch list). It refers to the exposurc granted to customers (private, corporate, other
entities etc) which, due to inherent characteristics or because of external factors, show signs of
varying degrees of difficulty, with possible deterioration of the credit quality.

Performing Loans include credit with potential problems that have not yet incurred, but could lead to
breach of contract unless timely resolved.

With reference to legal entities, this status generally includes those exposures for which
rescheduling/renegotiation either was proposed or is being proposed in order to reorganise the company
and recover the balance.

Impairment methodology

The Bank reviewed in 2013 the methodologies for determining IFRS collective provision and has
assigned clear roles and responsibilities for the individual impairment allowance.
As such, performing loans are collectively assessed based on groups of assets with similar characteristics,
as follows:
a) Size

- Companies

- Small and medium enterprises
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

- Economic entities and micro entities
- Retail
b) Days past due, at the reporting date
- 0, for customers with days past due equal to 0 days
- 1, for customers with days past due between 1 and 15 days included

- 2, for customers with days past due between 16 and 30 days included
- 3, for customers with days past due between 31 and 60 days included
- 4, for customers with days past due between 61 and 90 days included
5, for customers with days past due higher than 90 days.
c) Customer type
- Private individuals
- Legal entities

d) Activity
- Agriculture,
- Commerce,
- Industry,
Real estate,
- Services and
Other activities
e) Product type
Mortgage/Real Estate,
- Consumer Loans,
- Revolving, Non Revolving,
- Agricultural Loans,
- Investment loans and other,
- Letters of Guarantee/Letters of Credit,
- Others

Nonperforming loans are individually assessed case by case or based on a portfolio approach, as follows:

- Past Due: the exposures classified with this status, independently of the amount, will be subject to
monthly individual assessment on portfolio basis (flat-rate adjustments) in accordance with the tables
provided by the Risk Management Department, on the basis of the historical series of status changes and
recoveries.

- Substandard: the exposures within a defined threshold will be subject to monthly individual
assessment on portfolio basis (flat rate adjustments) in accordance with the tables provided by the Risk
Management Department, on the basis of the historical series of status changes and recoveries.

The threshold value is established at EUR 75,000 and may be reviewed from time to time by the AQC,
together with the Bank’s Loan and Risk Management departments. In any event such threshold will not
exceed that established by the Parent Company.

The exposures above the pre-established threshold are subject to an individual evaluation performed by
the Credit Recovery Department in accordance with the prevailing management prerogatives and after
discussion with the commercial unit, and decided by the same credit function or bigher decision-making
bodies, in accordance with prevailing management prerogatives. The recovery forecasts are made at
classification, and subsequently every 6 (six) months, and in any case, for any relevant event that may
occur during the period (i.e. significant changes of the financing period etc).

The assessments are based on an attentive and in-depth qualitative and quantitative analysis:
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5. RESK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) of the economic, asset and financial situation of the counterparty in addition to
(ii) exogenous factors such as trends in the reference sector.

An analytical assessment is made for each individual credit on the basis of the risk implied by the
technical form of the outstanding, the degree of dependence on any mitigating factors, and if significant,
the financial effects of the time realistically estimated as necessary for its recovery.

A recovery forecast is made on the basis of the evaluation of the significance of the guarantees/collaterals
in place, the type of utilisation, the counterparty’s solvency and its current and prospective profitability.

- Restructured: the same criteria used for the individual evaluation of substandard loans are generally
applied to restructured loans since the risk of failing to fulfil the obligations continues to exist, despite the
renegotiation through restructuring agreements.

- Doubtful: all the positions classified as doubtful, both under management of the Credit Recovery
Department or under external management are valued using the individual assessment.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RESK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Collaterals held and other techniques to reduce credit risk

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Performing loans
Mortgages 3,436,547,713 3,375,784,837
Pledge on equipments 411,407,274 384,391,552
Pledge on goods, merchandize etc. 171,725,156 222,177,938
Other express, irrevocable and
unconditional personal guarantees issued
by FNGCIMM SA 95,157,943 96,961,092
Guarantees received from the public
institutions of Romania - credits - 0%
level of risk, “prima casa” 130,752,375 80,006,615
Pledge on vehicles 83,685,579 57,643,256
Letters of guarantee 221,760,062 47,990,436
Other express, irrevocable and
unconditional personal guarantees issued
by FGC of Romania 39,407,780 38,616,491
Pledge — collateral deposits 53,628,188 16,942,650
Total 4,644,072,070 4,320,514,867
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Non-performing loans
Mortgages

1,158,359,455

1,151,184,919

Pledge on equipments 75,911,076 46,353,512
Pledge on goods, merchandize etc. 45,152,814 63,656,782
Other express, irrevocable and

unconditional personal guarantees issued

by FINGCIMM SA 48,825,428 15,677,832
Guarantees received from the public

institutions of Romania — credits - 0%

level of risk, “prima casa” 224 823 -
Pledge on vehicles 10,778,117 4,372,942
Letters of guarantee - 2,657,221
Other express, irrevocable and

unconditional personal guarantees issued

by FGC of Romania 5,154,249 3,417,036
Pledge — collateral deposits 539,829 1,000,074
Total 1,344,945,791 1,288,320,318
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

{all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Loans secured by mortgages

The table below stratifies credit exposures on mortgages and advances to retail customers and corporate on
loan-to-value intervals (LTV). LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan - or committed
amount for loan commitments - and the collateral value. Gross amounts exclude any adjustments for

impairment,

Evaluation of collaterals excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling of collateral. Collateral values
presented below for mortgage loans are based on the value of revaluated collateral in accordance with market

changes.

Corporate

Retail

31 December

31 December

Loan to vakue rate (LTV) 2013 2012
50% 150,117,911 173,285,860
51% -70% 172,938,282 173,444,013
71% - 90% 71,578,489 186,955,328
91% - 100% 110,853,336 83,658,364
>100% 954,374,169 302,377,147
Total 1,459,862,187 919,720,712

31 December 31 December
Loan to value rate (LTV) 2013 2012
50% 49,259,541 26,577,285
51% -710% 155,669,864 37,166,923
71% - 90% 28,371,866 146,424,159
01% - 100% 22,753,288 13,279,710
>100% 313,444,979 168,602,953
Total 569,499,538 392,051,030

In addition to assessing the quality of corporate customers, the Bank revaluates with a frequency of once a year,

respectively once every 3 years for residential mortgage collaterals.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)
The portfolio, of securities which is held and classified as available for sale is described below.

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Government securities and treasury bills:
Rating BBB+ and lower 526,911,857 494,571,470

The table below describes the exposures arising from financial derivatives. Overall transactions with the
derivatives of the Group are fully secured by cash.

Banking institutions Other
31 December 2013 Notional Fair value Notional Fair
value
Financial derivatives
acquired 461,174,858 44,000 176,076,907 75,217
Financial derivatives
sold 462,302,501 40,100 175,643,431 130
31 December 2012
Financial derivatives
acquired 123,462,322 61,165 228,067,610 254,714
Financial derivatives
sold 428,454,295 253,232 91,567,585 113,236

{¢) Eurozone country risk

Regarding the country risk, according to the Group’s indications, the eurozone countries do not apply to
continuous monitoring. During 2013, the exposure towards Cyprus was additionally monitored. On
31.12.2013 and 31.12.2012 the Bank has no exposure to debtors from Cyprus.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on regular basis. The bank has developed
internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high liquid assets which could be used to secure
additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of eligible assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Bank also has EUR 270,000,000 money market limit with Intesa
Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milan and a committed back-up line of credit in amount of EUR 50,000,000 from Intesa
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milan that it can access to meet liquidity needs in case of a liquidity crisis. In accordance
with the Bank’s policy the liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving

consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Bank.

Liquidity risk exposures

The key ratio used by the Bank for the management of Liquidity Risk is the ratio between net liquid assets
and customer accounts. For this purpose net liquid assets are considered as cash and cash equivalents,
securities for which there is an active and liquid market less any deposits from banks, debt securities, loans

and other liabilities due the following month.

Rate of net liquid assets to deposits from customers at the reporting date and during the reporting period

were as follows;

As at 31 December
Average for the period
Maximum of the period
Mintmum of the period

2013 2012

42.71% 51.87%
37.41% 42.39%
52.87% 57.65%
26.83% 28.12%

Level of liquidity ratios calculated according to National Bank of Romania requirements are given below as

follows:
<=1
month
As at 31 December 1.57
Maximum for the period 1.57
Minimum for the period 1.20
<=1
month
As at 31 December 1.23
Maximum for the period 1.57
Minimum for the period 1.19

2013
13 3-6 6-12
months months months
5.79 7.00 7.01
6.39 12.80 7.01
2.81 2.97 3.49
2012
1-3 3-6 6-12
months months months
1.89 4.66 3.54
8.07 14.99 16.59
1.75 24 3.54

>12
months

2.90
2.90
235

>12
months

2.66
2.66
1.98
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BANCA COMERCTALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Bank does not hoid
Trading Portfolios. The market risk for the Banking Book is monitored based on a Value-at-Risk (VaR)
methodology regarding Foreign Exchange risk and sensitivity analysis for the Interest Rate risk. Interest
rate risk exposure related to activities out of the trading portfolio. Interest rate risk arises from the
possibility that changes in interest rates affect future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments.
Bank has set limits on interest rate differences in the banking portfolio. In accordance with Bank policies,
positions are monitored on a regular basis and daily gaps are checked.

The following table shows the interest rate risk of the Bank based on sensitivity ratio to interest rate for +
/ - 50 basis points, respectively + / - 100 basis points, both for 2012 and 2013.

+50 -50 basis
+100 basis pt.  -100 basis pt.  basis pt. pt.
Sensitivity of projected net interest income (in RON)
2013
At 31 December 8,866,903  -6,387,034 4432473  -4,390,414
Average for the period 7,824,504  -5,698,196 3,910,981  -3,681,003
Maximum for the period 12,220,349  -3,346,525 6,108,758  -2,086,981
Minimum for the period 4,575,054 9,440,452 2,286,944  -5861,722
2012
At 31 December 9,009,352 4,613,322 4,518226  -3,407,502
Average for the period 5313,806 -3,787,750 2,667,149  -2,427,707
Maximum for the period 9,115,925  -1,529,339 4,570,865  -1,403,308
Minimum for the period 2,767,580  -7,363,713 1,393,368  -3,602,402

The table below presents annual interest rates obtained or provided by the Bank for the interest bearing
assets and liabilities during the financial year 2013 (in perceuiages):

2013 RON USD EUR
Range Range Range
of interest rates of interest rates of interest rates

Assets Min Max Min Max Min Max
Current accounts with the National
Bank of Romania 0.59 1.3 - - 0.36 0.56
Placements with banks 1 6.5 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 3,92 17,92 4,27 4,27 4,92 7.07
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 0.2 59 0.25 0.25 0.05 1.4
Subordinated debts ; - - - 1.202 1.270
Borrowings from banks y . - - 0.463 4.670
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(ail amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RESK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

The table below presents annual interest rates obtained or provided by the Bank for the interest bearing
assets and liabilities during the financial year 2012 (in percentages):

2012 RON USD EUR
Range Range Range
of interest rates of interest rates of interest rates
Assets Min Max Min Max Min Max
Current accounts with the National
Bank of Romania 0.93 143 0.24 0.5 0.56 0.78
Placements with banks 1.25 9 0.5 0.5 - -
Loans and advances to customers 3 23 3.75 5.49 2.69 11.99
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 1 8.5 1 3.95 0.11 525
Deposits from barks 0.5 73 0.6 0.75 0.06 3.04
Subordinated debts a S - - 1.878 3.235
Borrowings from banks - - - - 0.472 5.982
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2013
(@il amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

The Bank's policy is to maintain foreign currency position in balance covering the operational needs resulted
from the ordinary activities of bank’s customers. The Bank monitors on a daily frequency total foreign

currency position of the Bank and VaR. At the reporting date, net currency exposures are as follows:

31 December 2013

Assets
Cash and current
accounts with banks

Placements with banks

Investment securities
Loans and advances to
customers

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from banks
Borrowings from banks
Subordinated debts
Deposits from customers

Total liabilities

Net Foreign Currency
position

31 December 2012

Assets
Cash and current
accounts with banks

Placements with banks

Investment securities
Loans and advances to
customers

Total assets
Liabilities

Deposits from banks
Borrowings from banks

Subordinated debts
Deposits from customers

Total liabilities

Net Foreign Currency
position

RON EUR USD Others Total
360,859,623 446,125,938 3,073,451 2,039,862 812,098,874
114,267,028 21,877,436 5,903,334 2,511,575 144,559,284
526,911,857 - 526,911,857

1,075,904,086 2,350,178,914 8,602,642 10,134,233 3,444,819,875
2,077,942,594 2,818,182,198 17,579,427 14,685,670 4,928,389,890
88,873,940 96,455,698 182.009 37.753 185.549.400

= 936,044,625 - 936.044.625

- 31,445,115 - 31.445.115
1,499,080,974 1,602,707,181 53.971.303 3.332.258 3.159.091.716
1,587,954,914 2,666,652,619 54.153.312 3.370.011 4.312,130.855
489,987,680 151.529.669 -36.573.885 11.315.661 616.259.124

RON EUR USDh Others Total

291.711.475 511.454.028 2.525.594 1.704.849 807.395.944

25.700.400 19.360.689 643.808 1.846.916 47.551.813
471,945,197 22.626.273 - - 494.571.470
1.096.426.506 2.429.626.412 9.404.295 13.811.568 3.549,268.781
1.885.783.578 2.983.067.400 12.573.697 17.363.333 4.898.788.008
199.236.908 362.593.827 352,538 13.222.519 575.405.792
1.036.599.873 - 1.036.559.373

- 31.055.582 = - 31.055.582
1.089.106.908 1.344.663.594 59.536.071 3.080.466 2.496.387.639
1.288.343.816 2.774.912.876 59.888.509 16.302.985 4.139.448.286
597.439.762 208.154.524 -47.314.912 1.060.348 759.339.722
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

Yalue at risk, represents a control tool of the foreign exchange position by revealing the maximum
amount of loss the Bank may book, taking into consideration the current exchange position and the
potential profit and loss generated by this 1 year period. The intervention period considered is 1 day. The
maximum permissible limit is equivalent to EUR 100,000 with a sub-limit of EUR 80,000.

Year VYaR 2013 FX VaR eq EUR
2013 31 December 26.830

2013 Average daily 8.347

2013 Max 53.128

2013 Min 1.023

Year VaR 2012 FX VaR eq EUR
2012 31 December 24.639

2012 Average daily 23.811

2012 Max 524.852
2012 Min 779

(e) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events,
‘When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or lead to financial loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it
endeavors to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential
risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorization and reconciliation procedures,
staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.

The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility of operational risk to Operational Risk Committee,
which is responsible for the development and implementation of controls to deal with operational risk. This
responsibility is supported by the development of general Group standards for the management of operational
risk in the following areas:
- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including independent authorization of
transactions;
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
compliance with legal regulations;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced by the bank, and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
- reporting requirements of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
- development of emergency plans;
- training and professional development;
- ethical and business standards, and
- mitigation, including insurance even this is effective.

Compliance with Group standards is supported by a program of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal
Audit. Internal audit results are discussed in Operational Risk Committee and the Audit Committee, and
management of the Bank.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f) Taxation risk

The Romanian tax legislation provides for detailed and complex rules and has suffered various changes in
the recent years. Interpretation of the text and practical implementation procedures of tax legistation could
vary, and there is a risk that certain transactions, for example, could be viewed differently by the tax
authorities as compared to the Bank's treatment. Furthermore, the recent conversion to IFRS of the
Romanian banks raised additional tax implications that are not yet fully clarified in the legislation and
might generate potential tax risks.

The Romanian Government has a number of agencies that are authorized to conduct audits of companies
operating in Romania. These audits are similar in nature to tax audits performed by tax authorities in
many countries, but may extend not only to tax matters but to other legal and regulatory matters in which
the applicable agency may be interested. It is likely that the Bank will continue to be subject to regular
controls as new laws and regulations are issued.

(g) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

Actual **Required Actual **Required
Regulatory capital 2013 2013 2012 2012
*Total capital 388,356,362 261,220,990 513,547,769 260,441,890
Risk weighted assets 3,265,262,373 _3,255,523,629
Tier 1 capital ratio 11.89% 15.77%

Regulatory capital consists of tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained
earnings including current year profit, legal reserves net of taxes and deductions for items such as
intangible assets, holdings in other credit and financial institutions amounting to more than 10% of their
capital and subordinated claims in other credit and financial institutions in which holdings exceed 10% of
their capital. The other component of regulatory capital is Tier 2 capital, which includes subordinated
long term debt, reserves to valuation differences in property, plant and equipment transferred to additional
own funds, and deductions for holdings in other credit and financial institutions amounting to more than
10% of their capital and subordinated claims in other credit and financial institutions in which holdings
exceed 10% of their capital.

Certain adjustments are made to IFRS-based results and reserves, as prescribed by the National Bank of
Romania.

*The Capital is calculated according to the National Bank of Romania Regulation no. 18/2006 on IFRS
data.

**Represents the capital requirement for credit risk, market risk and operational risk calculated according
to the NBR Regulation no. 13/2006 with subsequent changes, on IFRS data.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(h) Operational environment

In 2013, the macroeconomic environment registered a positive trend. The GBP related to 2012 registered
a growth of only 0.6% while the GBP as per 2013 increased with 3.5% due to the positive impact of the
agricultural sector. The forecast for the next year indicate a 2.2% increase in the GBP, the economy being
sustained by external demand and by the gradual recovery of the internal demand. Moreover, the inflation
rate registered a downward in 2013, with an annual rate of 1.55%, hovering between the target of NBR of
1.5% - 3.5%, due to a good agricultural year and a VAT reduction at bakery sector. The foreign direct
investment registered an increasing trend, with a value of EUR 2.71 billion, growing with 26.8% as
compared to 2012. The most representative part of the foreign direct investment were the borrowings
between groups, in amount of EUR 0.94 billion, given the support of foreign banks to local subsidiaries.
The current account deficit was adjusted in 2013 as compared to 2012, reducing its amount from EUR 5.8
billion in 2012, to EUR 1.5 billion in 2013. The amount of external debt in 2013 was EUR 96.44 billion,
significantly improved as compared to 2012, when the external debt registererd EUR 99.68 billion, the
trend being influenced by the reimbursement from the International Monetary Fund and of the non-
residents deposits which decreased from EUR 7.75 billion to EUR 6.45 billion at the end of 2013
(Source: market data, Bank’s analysis).

Management believes that all necessary measures to support the sustainability and growth of the Bank in
the current business by:
* Constant monitoring of liquidity positions and excessive dependence on categories of sources;
* Short-term forecasting of net liquidity positions;
* Obtaining shareholders' engagement on their continued support for the Bank's operations in
Romania;
* Review the terms and conditions of funding agreements and consideration of the imposed
obligations implications and risks identified such as maturity dates, or any other terms or clauses
that may have been violated or may be violated near future.

Exposures to high risk eurozone countries

In 2013 credit risk concerns were maintained in respect of several euro-zone countries, determining
suppositions regarding the long term susteinability of thc curo zone. The woresening of recession for
several countries, the economic and political consequences, edtermined by the fiscal measures, as well as
the measures of the governements and the uncertainties regarding the continuity of several financial
institutions of these countries determined a increase in the yield volatilities of governement bonds.
Recently, some measures taken by the Central European Bank and the Furopean Commission had
positive effects on the trust of the markets. However, the situation of these countries is sensitive. As at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 the Bank did not record exposures to high risk eurozone
countries.

6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions which impact the reported amount of assets and Habilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Use of judgments and estimates has the greatest importance:

a) Impairment

Assets accounted for at amortized cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in Note 4 letter i}
(vii).
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6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

a) Impairment (continued)

The specific component of the total allowances for impairment applies of financial assets assessed
individually for impairment and is based upon Bank’s best estimate of the present value of cash flows that
are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, the Bank makes judgments about a debtor's
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed
on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are
independently approved by the Committee on Quality Assets,

The Bank reviews its loans and advances individually significant at each of reporting date, to assess
whether to record an impairment loss in the income statement. In particular, management's assessments are

needed for coordinating estimating future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These
estimates are based on assumptions about several factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes of adjustments.

Individual assessment is required in all cases where there is objective evidence of impairment. For loans
recognized at amortized value (cost amortized) the loss is measured as the difference between the exposure
(at amortized cost) and net present value of future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate.

Collective assessment is mandatory in all cases where there were no objective evidence of impairment
identified is achieved by a group of financial assets after similar credit risk characteristics and their
evaluation using historical loss rates associated with information on loss experience in these groups of
active and relevant observable data.

A collective component of the total allowances for impairment applies is established as follows:

- Individual adjustments for impairments identified in homogeneous groups of loans and other
receivables that are not individually analyzed to determine the level of impairment because they are not
individually significant;

- Collective adjustments for losses incurred but unidentified, loans and receivables, whether or not
individualiy significant, for which there were no individual adjustments for impairment.

Collective adjustment for homogeneous groups of loans is determined using statistical methods and
estimation of the adjustment is made on the basis of historical data on default behavior of borrowers and
history / forecast of losses for impaired positions combined so to reflect the terms of product structure,
their economic effects on the reporting date.

Collective adjustment for significant active groups, but have not been individually assessed for impairment
applies refers to the loan portfolio expected loss.

In assessing collective impairment adjustment, the Bank takes into account factors such as credit quality,
portfolio size, concentration levels and economic factors.

In order to estimate the necessary adjustment, hypotheses are developed to define how expected losses are
modeled and to determine the required input parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions. Accuracy in determining the total adjustments for impairment applies depends,
therefore, estimates of future cash flows of counterparties individually assessed and the assumptions and
parameters used in determining collective adjustments.

Adjustments for impairment applied for loans and receivables are presented in more detail in Note 15.
Investments in equity instruments of participation and were valued at their book value, since it was not
possible to determine an impairment test or assessment to market value / fair value.
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6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)
a) Impairment (continued)

Assessment to determine whether an investment in sovereign debt (see Note 4 (b)) is impaired can be very
complex, but only because the bank holds investments in government securities Romanian, test them for
impairment applies is excluded. To evaluate these instruments, please see point b) fair value.

The loan impairment assessment comsiders the visible effects on current market conditions on the
individual/ collective assessment of Joans and advances to customers’ impairment. The Bank has estimated
the impairment loss provision for loans and advances to customers based on the internal methodology
harmonized with Group policies and assessed that no further provision for impairment losses are required
except as already provided for in the financial statements. Because of the uncertainties on the local
financial markets regarding assets valuation and operating environment of the borrowers, that Bank’s
estimate could be revised after the date of the approval of the financial statements.

b) Fair value

Where the fair values of assets and liabilities cannot be measured on active markets, because of their
specialisation, low volume of transactions, the fair values are determined using valuation techniques which
include financial and mathematical models. The inputs for the models are derived from existing markets
when possible and when not, judgement is needed to establish fair values. The judgements refer to liquidity
and input values.

Determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which there is no observable
market price requires the use of valuation techniques as described in note 4 (j) (vi).

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques which contain variable information obtained from market perceptible. When using
valuation techniques (e.g. models) to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by
qualified persorme! independent of the area that created them.

All models are adjusted to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the
extent that this is practical, models use only perceptible information, however, areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), fluctuations and correlations require management attention to be estimated. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly - i.e. as prices — or indirectly - i.e.
derived from prices. This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.
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6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

b) Fair value (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments the Group determines fair values
using valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques used refers to the net present value and discounted cash flows. Assumptions and input
parameters used in valuation techniques include risk-free rate and the reference interest and exchange rates.

The Bank uses widely recognized valuation models for determining the fair value of financial instruments
simple (interest rate instruments and foreign exchange instruments) that use only observable market data
and require a little reasoning to estimate. Observable prices and model input parameters are provided by
dedicated structure within the Bank.

For the treasury bills, the Bank uses to official listings nationwide through a single dedicated system, this is
also the depository of such securities issued in dematerialized form in the Romanian national market.

All financial instruments recorded at fair value are classified into three categories as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted market prices

Level 2 - Valuation techniques (noticed on the market)

Level 3 - Valuation techniques (market unnoticed)

On 31 December 2013, the Bank owned the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivatives 119,221 - 119,221 -
Securities available for sale 526,621,698 - 526,621,698 -
Liabilities measured at fair value Total Nivelul 1 Nivelul 2 Nivelul 3
Derivatives 40,235 - 40,235 =
At 31 December 2012:

Assets measured at fair value Total Nivelul 1 Nivelul 2 Nivelul 3

Derivatives 315,880 - 315,880 -

Securities, available for sale 494,292,331 - 494,292 331 -

Liabilities measured at fair value Total Nivelul 1 Nivejunl 2 Nivelul 3

Derivatives 366,468 - 366,468 -

In 2013 and 2012 there were no transfers between Level 1 fair value measurements and Level 2.
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6. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (continued)
b) Fair value (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

Please find below a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments
that banks are not recorded at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair
values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

The following paragraphs describe the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values of
those financial instruments that are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements:

Assets for which fair value approximates accounting value

For financial assets and liabilities that are due in the short term (under one year), it is assumed that the
carrying amounts approximate their fair value. This assumption applies to term deposits and savings
accounts without a specific maturity.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with fixed rate at amortized cost are estimated by
comparing market interest rates after they were first recognized with current market rates for similar
financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those assets and liabilities that
are not listed in the bank's balance sheet at their fair value.

31 December 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Book value
Financial assets
Cash, current accounts
with the central bank - - 812,098,874 812,098,874 812,098,874
Placements with banks - 144,555,491 144,555,491 144,559,284
Loans and advances to
customers = 3,551,246,745  3,551,246,745  3,444,819.875
Total - - 4,507,901,110 4,507,901,110  4,401,478,033
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks . . 183,038,144 183,038,144 185,549,400
Deposits to customers - - 3,123,440,708 3,123,440,708  3,159,091,716
Borrowings from banks
and subordinate debts - 1,048,463,791 1,048,463,791 967,489,740
Total . - 4,354,942,643 4,354,942,643  4,312,130,856

51




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(wll amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

2013 2012

Interest income:

Not impaired loans 230,564,549 253,543,811
Impaired loans 57,558,001 56,669,526
Unwinding interest -47,919,577 47,017,695
Current accounts and deposits with banks 5,859,793 8,677,071
Financial investments — available for sale 27,068,372 31,876,252
Total interest income 273,131,138 303,748,965
Interest expense:

Deposits from customers -91,058,873 97,138,039
Deposits from banks 5,374,703 -13,352,284
Borrowings from banks -26,486,006 -34,312,806
Subordinated loans -384,635 -1,275,599
Repurchase agreements -895,359 -1,012,748
Total interest expense -124,199,578 -147,091,476
Net interest income 148,931,560 156,657,489

The interest income regarding the impaired loans are RON 9,638,424 ( 31 December 2012: RON

9,651,831).

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2013 2012

Fee and comimission income

Income from transactions fees 25,850,423 22,243,274
Income from commissions on loans 10,694,009 8,397,448
Other commission income 27,557 49,135
Total fee and commission income 36,571,988 30,689,857
Fee and commission expense

Cheltuieli cu comisioane referitoare la tranzactii -5,678,664 -6,082,377
Commissions paid to the Loan Guarantee Funds -5,202,651 -1,260,236
Inter-banking transactions fees -136,724 -200,568
Fees for cash acquisition -601,422 -1,514,408
Total fee and commission expense -11,619,460 -9,057,589
Net fee and commission income 24,952,528 21,632,268
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9. NET TRADING INCOME

2013 2012
Gain from foreign exchange differences 327,833 18,334,160
Revenue from transactions with foreign exchange derivatives 26,437,387 10,502,287

26,765,220 28,836,447
10. OTHER REVENUE FROM SALE OF AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

2013 2012
(Gains on sale of available-for-sale securities 8,649,735 1,079,490
Net loss on sale of available-for-sale securities -437 416 -35,344

8,212,319 1,044,146

11. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2013 2012
Wages and salaries 53,520,432 59,297,043
Compulsory social security contributions 15,259,382 15,625,816
Other personnel expenses 1,233,467 1,676,317

70,013,281 76,599,176

Other personnel expenses include meal tickets.

Share-based payment

In 2012 the Bank purchased a total of 39,014 shares Intesa Sanpaolo SPA Italia which has to be assigned
for managers as remuneration according to the policy and rules approved by the Group.
Until the final allocation of shares to managers, the Bank will own the shares.

According to the group policy the cost of shares was covered by the Bank through a provision booked for
staff bonuses. At 31 December 2013, the market value of these shares was RON 313,888 (31 December
2012: 169.569 RON).
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12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2013 2012
Administrative expenses 39,881,220 43,817,990
Local taxes expenses 3,104,770 2,949,695
Software licensing 3,949,608 4,629,510
Advertising and marketing 1,470,810 1,577,823
Bank Deposits Guarantee fund expenses 6,649,404 4,522,952
Consultancy and professional services 051,614 2,842,008
Others 104,273 154,284
56,111,699 60,494,262
Administrative expenses are detailed below:
2613 2012
Rental expenses 18,345,832 21,701,366
Inventories and consumables 98,943 344,144
Heating, electricity and others 3,308,577 3,215,661
IT & C expenses 1,746,700 1,773,480
Postage, telephone and other expenses 2,219,256 2,832,082
Travel expenses 1,822,059 1,680,000
Security services expenses 1,237,535 1,627,128
Expenditure on staff trainings 170,689 123,287
Insurance expenses 403,157 424,710
Cleaning service expenses 1,140,661 1,090,674
Card service expenses 2,041,752 2,115,310
Protocol expenses 617,442 683,438
Legal service expenses 187,244 870,538
Expense with forms, stationery and other printed material 1,688,161 1,436,410
Transportation services 891,387 1,055,837
Others 3,961,825 2,843,925
39,881,220 43,817,990

A result of a detailed analysis of operating results and the achievement of operational performance targets
over the past two years have been closed 14 units (from which 10 units during 2013 and other 4 units
during 2012) which failed to and meet performance targets and / or losses obtained after approval from

the Board of Directors of the Bank.

The Bank recorded provisions covering the total costs for closure of these units. The costs of closing
these branches include penalties paid to owners for unilateral termination of leases, lease improvements

of the object written off.
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12. INCOME TAX REVENUE

Expense / (income) with current tax
Expense / (income) with deferred tax
Allowance for impairment on loans to customers

Tax credit for losses
Deductible/taxable temporary differences

Deferred t8X revenue

Total income tax

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Loss before tax

Theoretical taxation at statutory rate
Tax exempt income

Fiscal depreciation

Non-taxable income
Non-deductible expenses
Temporary differences
(De)recognition of tax losses

Income tax

2013 2012

66,247,527 6,538,217

67,241,168 -1,893,781

993,641 4,691,771

- 47,335

- 47,335

2013 2012

-165,384,385 -105,497,153
16.00% -26,461,502  16.00%  -16,879,545
-3499% 57,875,350  -2.28% 2,408,182
0.04% 59208  0.43% 458,628
7.73% -12,779.565  7.26%  -7,663,253
8.70% 14,393,440  -9.84% 10,375,775
0.10% 158,983  4.45%  -4,691,771
-19.84% -32,809,443 -15.98% 16,861,905
- - 0.04% -47,335
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLQ ROMANIA SA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and fer the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

14. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Cash 81,332,152 75,732,197
Current accounts at National Bank of Romania 730,766,722 731,663,747
812,098,874 807,395,944

Current accounts include reserves in the National Bank of Romania. Minimum reserve level set by the
National Bank of Romania for renewable attracted with the maturity of less than two years and for
attracted sources with residual maturity greater than two years, which provide centractual clauses relating
to refunds, withdrawals, transfer of 15% was anticipated sources deposits in lei and 20% of bank currency
as well at 31 December 2013 as 31 December 2012. The Bank may use the minimum reserve requirement
in daily operational activities, subject to specified levels for average monthly balances.

In 2013, interest rates ranged between 1.30% and 0.59% (2012: between 1.43% and 0.93%) for reserves
kept in RON and remained between 0.56% and 0.36% (2012: between 0.79% and 0.58%) for reserves
kept in EUR. In 2013, interest rates for term deposits in RON at National Bank of Romania were:
between 1% and 2.25% (2012: 1.25%).

16. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current accounts 34,497,409 27,548,480
Overnight deposits and term deposits 110,061,875 20,003,333
Total placements with banks 144,559,284 47,551,813

In 2013, interest on bank deposits ranged between 1.10% and 6.50% for RON (2012: between 1.25% and
9.00%) and there were no placements with banks in other currencies during the year. Placements with
banks are not pledged in favor of third parties.

17. DERIVATIVES HELD FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

The fair values of derivatives held are presented below:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Currency swaps 44,003 40,100 61,165 253,232
Currency forwards 75,214 130 254,715 113,236
Total 119,217 40,230 315,880 366,468
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

18. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

2013 2012

Individual Provision o
At 1 January 602,945,194 409,043,492
Charge for the year 385,008,714 357,568,408
Releases during the period -161,031,303 -216,404,378
Write-offs — recoveries -51.815.303 -2,580,311
Adjustments for interest on impaired loans 47.919.577 47,017,695
Effect of exchange rate 5,937,704 8,300,287
At 31 December 828,964,583 602,945,194
Collective Provision
At 1 January 66,255,198 52,178,351
Charge for the year 114,358,414 146,137,199
Releases during the period -110,871,661 -132,694,048
Differences from exchance rates 462,825 633,696
At 31 December 70,204,777 66,255,198
19. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Debt securities 526,621,698 494,292,331
Equity investments, available for sale 290,159 279,139
Total 526,911,857 494,571,470
(a) Debt securities

Debt securities comprise treasury bills, bonds denominated in RON issued by Ministery of Public Finance
of Romania. All securities were free of charge at 31 December 2013.

Investments in shares available for sale, owned by the Bank, are detailed below:

Shareholding

Country of 31 December 31 December
Investment incorporation Nature of business 2013 2012
Sibex Sibiu Stock Romania Commodity exchange 26,880 26,880
Exchange
Romanian Clearing ~ Romania Clearing house BMFMS 40,500 40,500
House
TransFonD Romania Settlement and clearing 193,803 193,803

inter-banking transfer

Credit bureau Romania 28,976 17,956
Total 290,159 279,139
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

19. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)
(b) Equity investments

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing IFN S.A. (i) 8,745,616 8,745,616
Intesa Sanpaolo SPA (ii) 313,88 169,570
Total 9,059,504 8,915,186

(i) Banca Comerciala Intesa Sanpaolo Romania holds 99.49% of the share capital of INTESA
SANPAOLO LEASING ROMANIA LF.N S.A., a Romanian company located at S-PARK BUCURESTI
str. TIPOGRAFILOR no. 11-15, registered at the Romanian Registry of Commerce under
J40/14030/2005 fiscal number RO17863812.

(i) During 2012, Banca CR Firenze Romania S.A acquired a number of 39,014 shares from Intesa
Sanpaoclo SPA, with a value of RON 169,570. At the end of 2013, the shares were revaluated according
to stock prices, registering at 31 December 2013 a value of RON 313,888.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Computer Gther Total

buildings Hardware assets
Costs:
At 1 January 2012 114,051,583 12,285,938 30,701,583 157,039,104
Additions 59,221 1,289,054 916,500 2,265,175
Disposals -7,228,359 -1,718,848 -2,302 817 -11,250,024
At 31 December 2012 106,882,445 11,856,144 29,315,666 148,054,255
At 1 January 2013 106,882,445 11,856,144 29,315,666 148,054,255
Additions 121,974 1,783,148 95,446 2,000,568
Disposals -3,319,115 -320,912 -3,445,790 -7,085,817
At 31 December 2013 103,685,304 13,318,380 25,965,322 142,969,086
Amortizare:
At 1 January 2012 23,171,388 9,437,539 16,698,705 49,307,632
Disposals -1,473,608 -1,549,747 -870,338 -3,893,693
Depreciation charge for the year 4,299,737 1,919,100 2,586,293 8,805,130
Impairment losses 4,825,029 - - 4,825,029
At 31 December 2012 30,822,546 9,806,892 18,414,660 59,044,098
At 1 January 2013 30,822,546 9,806,892 18,414,660 59,044,098
Disposals -2,379,706 -319,219 -3,058,974 -5,757,899
Depreciation charge for the year 3,587,674 1,756,000 2,544,301 7,887,975
Impairment losses - - - -
At 31 December 2013 32,030,514 11,243,674 17,899,987 61,174,175
Nei book value:
At 31 December 2012 76,059,899 2,049,252 10,901,006 89,010,157
At 31 December 2013 71,654,790 2,074,706 8,065,335 81,794,831

Other assets include motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, household equipment, air conditioning
equipment.

All tangible assets are unencumbered and are secured to the net carrying amount at the concluding date of
the insurance.

Gross value of property and equipment fully depreciated and still in use is RON 18,421,482 (31
December 2012: RON 19,070,080).
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013
{all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Costs:

At 1 Janunary 2012
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2012

At 1 Jannary 2013
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2013

A:

At 1 January 2012

Disposals

Amortization charge for the year
At 31 December 2012

At 1 January 2013

Disposals

Amortization charge for the year
At 31 December 2013

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012
At 31 December 2013

Other
Computer intangible

software assets TOTAL
32,260,229 11,769 32,271,998
7,514,037 - 7,514,037
-1,007,282 - -1,007,282
38,766,984 11,769 38,778,753
38,766,984 11,769 38,778,753
15,328,551 . 15,328,551
-260,317 -1,013 -261,330
53,835,218 10,756 53,845,974
22,335,994 11,769 22,347,763
-1,007,255 - -1,007,255
4,332,734 - 4,332,734
25,661,473 11,769 25,673,242
25,661,473 11,769 25,673,242
-248 341 -1,013 -249,354
5,257,372 - 5,257,372
30,670,504 10,756 30,681,260
13,105,511 - 13,105,511
23,164,714 - 23,164,714

Intangible assets include licenses for the software used by the Bank.
The increase of intangible assets during 2013 is mostly related to the new acquisition software program in

amount of RON 11,213,022,

The remaining average amortization period is 2.5 years.

63




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIJA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost

At 1 January 2012
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2012

At 1 January 2013
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2013

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2012

Impairment
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2012

At 1 January 2013

Impairment
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2013

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012
At 31 December 2013

Amount

31,724,013
2,865,708

34,589,721

34,589,721
15,474

34,605,195

6,069,768
5,150,951
900,521

12,121,240

12,121,240

655,912

12,777,152

22,468,481

21,828,043

Investment property is held by the Bank following the takeover of assets held as collaterals for non
performing loans. Their fair value is based on a valuation performed by ANEVAR experts.

At 1 January 2013

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2013

22.468.481
15.474

-655.912
21.828.043
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPACOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

{all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

23. DEFFERED TAX

Current tax is calculated by applying the rate of 16% (2012: 16%). Deferred income taxes are calculated

based on all temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 16% (2012; 16%).

Assets and liabilities related to deferred tax are attributable to the following items:

2013 31 December
Balance at 1 Recognized Recognized Net Asset Liability
January in the in the
income comprehens
statement  ive income
statement
Allowance for
impairment on loans
and advances to
customers -66,247,527 66,247,527 - - -
Fair value of securities
available for sale -151,984 - -578,073 -730,057 - -730,057
Fiscal credit for losses 76,514,925 -67,241,168 - 9,273,757 9,273,757 -
Deductible temporary
differences 5,644,177 993,642 - 6,637,819 6,637,819 -
Assets related to
deferred tax
15,911,575 - - 15,911,575 15,911,576 -
Liabilities related to
deferred tax -151,984 - -578.073 -730,057 - -730,057
2012 31 December
Balance at Recognized Recognized Net Asset Liability
1 January in the in the
income comprehens
statement  ive income
statement
Allowance for
impairment on loans
and advances to
customers -59,709,311  -6,538,216 - 00,247,527 -66,247,527
Fair value of securities
available for sale 4,632 - -151,984 -151,984 - -151,984
Fiscal credit for losses 74,621,146 1,893,779 - 76,514,925 76,514,925 -
Deductible temporary
differences 952,406 4,691,771 - 5,644,177 5,644,177
Assets related to
deferred tax
15,864,874 -47,334 - 15911,575 15,911,576 -
Liabilities related to
deferred tax - - -151,984 -151,984 - -151,984
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2613

(ail amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

23. DEFFERED TAX (continued)

The decrease of fiscal credit of RON 67,241,168 is due to the following:

- Distribution of the net gain resulted from the difference between the IFRS specific impairment
allowance on loans and advances to customers and the prudential provision for loans and
advances to customers as at 31 December 2011 and
The possibility of recovery of assets representing deffered tax was evaluated by the Bank in
accordance with the budget for 2014 — 2015 in which the tax loss recovery it is estimated of only
RON 57,960,981 from the amount of RON 437,764,293, the total tax loss registered by the Bank

at 31 December 2013.

Also, following the clarifications introduced in the tax legislation, the deferred tax recorded on 1 January
2012 related to the difference between the carrying amount and the tax base of the Bank’s loan and
advances to customers portfolio was cancelled as it is considered to be of a permanent nature and
therefore, not tax deductible in the future. Reversal of deferred tax generated non-taxable income of RON

66,247,527.

According to the Fiscal Code, starting with 2009, the annual tax loss can be reported and recovered from
income tax derived in the next seven consecutive years. Detail of the limitation period tax loss for the
bank which recognize deferred tax is presented below:

Fiscal loss Expiry year
RON
115,004,886 2017
206,994,236 2018
115,765,171 2019
24, OTHER ASSETS

Deposits paid for rent, electricity
Expenses paid in advance
Sundry debtors

Advances paid to suppliers
Inventory

Foreign currency spots

Other

Total

31 December

31 December 2013 2012
1,805,717 1,814,809
2,409,428 1,773,210
6,210,211 5,838,972

101,420 1,917,158

672,752 688,366

- 4,155,336

1,159,577 969,248
12,359,105 17,157,099

66




BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

{all armounts are presenied in RON, unless otherwise stated)

25. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Sight deposits 11,794,094 154,023,069
Term deposits 164,442,541 295,556,649
Amounts in transit 9,312,764 18,068,388
Repurchase agreements - 107,757,685
Total 185,549,400 575,405,791

The main part of term deposits from customers were in RON and EURQ. Interest rate during the year
2013 for term deposits ranged between 1.00% and 4.97% for RON (2012: between 1.00% and 6.60%) for

deposits in EUR ranged between 0.35% and 3.10% (2012: between 0.35% and 3.04%).

Between 31 December 2012 - 7 January 2013 were performed repurchase agreements with the National
Bank of Romania with an interest rate of 5.25%. Amount redeemed at maturity was RON 107,851,959.

26. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

31 December
31 December 2013 2012
Current accounts 443 367,836 328,954,911
Sight deposits 340,090,657 260,951,670
Term deposits 2,298.,920,400 1,858,122,486
Collateral deposits 76,712,823 48,357,971
Total 3,159,091,71_§_ ___2,496,387,038
27. BORROWINGS FROM BANKS
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Loans from Intesa Sanpaoclo Group 868,738,743 1,036,599,873
Loans from European Investment Bank 67,305,882 0
Total 936,044,625 1,036,599,873

The amount from Intesa Sanpaolo Group at 31 December 2013 comprises borrowings received from

Societe Europeene de Banque SA Luxemburg and Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze.

Total amount granted is EUR 193,000,000 (2012: EUR 233,000,000). During 2013, additional to the
borrowings received from the Group, the Bank also receveived a borrowing from the European

Investment Bank in amount of EUR 15,000,000.

There are no restrictions to demand early reimbursement.

The first loan was received on 29 June 2007 in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 is repayable in one

installment on 29 June 2015.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

27. BORROWINGS FROM BANKS {continued)

The second loan was received on 29 June 2007, in the amount of EUR 20,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 27 June 2014.

The third loan was received on 23 October 2008, in amount of EUR 20,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 19 October 2018.

The fourth loan was received on 27 QOctober 2008, in amount of EUR 20,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 19 October 2018.

The fifth loan was received on 31 January 2011, in amount of EUR 50,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 28 February 2013.

The sixth loan was received on 26 August 2011, in amount of EUR 20,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 26 August 2014.

The seventh loan was received on 17 October 2011, in amount of EUR 30,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 17 October 2017.

The eighth loan was received on 17 December 2013, in amount of EUR 10,000,000 is repayable in one
installment on 17 December 2018.

The nineth loan was received on 30 October 2007 from Banca CR Firenze in amount of EUR 3,000,000 is
repayable in one installment on 17 October 2017,

Weighted average interest rate for these loans is 2.54% p.a. (2012: 2.83 % p.a.)

28. SUBORDONATED LOANS

31 December 2013 I December 2012
Subscribed loan from Cassa di risparmio di Firenze 31,445,115 31,055,5821
Total 31,445,115 31,055,582

The subscribed loan from Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze was received on 7 May 2007 in the amount of
EUR 7,000,000 and has the maturity on 27 April 2017.

In case of insolvency of the debtor, creditor claims arising from subordinated loan agreement will take
precedence over any other creditor of the debtor and will have priority only to the shareholders of the
debtor.
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BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA S.A.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated)

29. PROVISIONS

Provision for risk and charges
Provision for litigation

Provision for letters of guarantee off balance sheet exposure

Provisions for personnel expenses

Total

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
2,226,023 2,039,076
3,513,785 1,730,000

11,414,135 4,120,035
8,650,903 11,479,214
26,804,845 19,368,325

Provision for risk and charges includes the provision made for audit services (RON 610,270) the
provision made for additional building taxes and related penalties possibly owed to local tax authorities
budgets, starting with year 2009 and until year 2014, the prescription date (RON 1,200,000) and

provision for other expenses (RON 415,753).

The movement in provisions during 2013 is as follows:

Lettersof  Litigation Personnel Others Total

guarantees . =
At1 January 4,120,035 1,730,000 11,479,214 2,039,076 19,368,325
Arising during the year 18,876,558 1,772,277 2,096,214 1,422,707 24,167,756
Utilized -11,613,604 -5,000 4,920,608 -1,235,760 -17,774,972
Unused amounts reversed - - - -
Exchange rate differences 31,145 16,508 -3,917 43,736
At 31 December 11,414,134 3,513,785 8,650,903 2,226,023 25,804,845
30. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Taxes due to the State Budget 2,201,742 1,238,820
Salary to be paid 5,821,785 6,715,381
Expense accruals 454,657 534,599
Commission for LG’s 5,120,547 3,461,872
Open spot foreign currency position 2,474,313 -
MoneyGram creditors 2,841,942 2,125,917
Other liabilities 8,309,928 3,214,765
Total 27,224,914 17,291,354
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31. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Registered share capital 886,639,410 886,639,410
Share capital premiums 251,628,890 251,628,890
Restatement in accordance with JAS 29 40,174,800 40,174,800
Total share capital and share premium 1,178,443,100 1,149,802,165
Movement in the number of shares is shown in the table below:
2013 2012
(RON) (RON)
Number of shares owned by Intesa Sanpaolo group
At the beginning of the period 88,663,941 81,411,111
Issue of new shares - -
Shares issued at the merger - 7,252,830
At the end of the period 88,663,941 88,663,941

After the merger during 2012, there are issued a number of 7,252,830 shares at the value of 10/share, so
at 31 December 2013 the share capital of the Bank from the merger is represented by 88,663,941 shares

with a nominal value of 10/share. During 2013, the share capital did not change.
All issued shares are fully paid and confers the right to one vote each.

Shareholding structure as of 31 December, 2013 is shown in the table below:

31 December 2013
Shareholder
Number of shares Yo
Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A Italia 81,096,905 91.47
Intesa Sanpaolo Holding 314,211 0.35
Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze 7,252,825 8.18
Total 88,663,941 100.00
RESERVES
Available-for-sale Statutory  Other capital
reserve reserve reserve Total
At 1 January 2012 -24,325 15,723,724 13,035,658 28,735,057
Increase - . -1,408,411 -1,408,411
Net gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial asscts 822,240 - - 822,240
At 31 December 2012 797,915 15,723,724 11,627,247 28,148,886
At 1 January 2013 797,915 15,723,724 11,627,247 28,148,886
Increase - = - -
Net gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets 3,034,881 - - 3,034,881
At 31 December 2013 3,832,796 15,723,724 11,627,247 31,183,767
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31. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

The other capital reserve at 31 December 2013 includes: general reserve for credif Tis (RON 829,845)
and funds for general banking risks (RON 10,162,589) and other reserves (RON 634,813). General
reserve for general banking risks was set beginning with financial year of 2004 until the end of financial
year 2007, the accounting profit determined before the deduction of income tax - gross profit in shares
and limits provided by law. General credit risk reserve was established up to 2% of the outstanding loans
by the end of fiscal year 2003.

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 Deceriber 2013 31 December 2012

Cash 81,332,153 75,732,197
Current account to National Bank of Romania 730,766,722 731,663,747
Current accounts 34,497,409 27,548,479
Overnight deposits and term deposits 110,061,875 20,003,334
Total 956,658,158 854,947,757

Current accounts with central banks include mandatory reserve deposits. These are available to the Bank
for daily operations, with the condition that the Bank to maintain minimum required by law for monthly
average.

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank issues guarantees and letters of credit on behalf of its customers. The market and credit risk on
these financial instruments, as well as the operating risk is similar to that arising from granting of ioans.
In the event of a claim on the Bank as a result of a customer’s default on a guarantee these instruments
also present a degree of liquidity risk to the Bank.

The aggregate amount of outstanding gross commitments and contingencies as at period end was:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Letters of guarantee issued for non-banking clients 477,276,897 454,019,935
Unused loan facilities and letters of credit 394,998,176 361,572,453
Letters of guarantee issued for other banks 207,981,102 241,449,322
Total 1,080,166,175 1,057,041,709

Letters of guarantee include letters of guarantee in amount of RON 51,342,701 (31 December 2012: RON
71,179,661) issued for the credit risk regading the loans granted by Intesa Sanpaolo Ireland, Banka
Koper, Intesa Mediocredito SPA Milano and Tntesa Sanpaolo Spa to Romanian customers.
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33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The future operating lease payments committed are disclosed below:
31 December 31 December

2013 2012
No later than 1 year 14,986,243 16,939,342
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 39,764,261 34,754,336
Later than 5 years 13,900,127 12,519,051

The rentals which the Bank has to pay in the next years are according to the contracts for the rented
spaces where some units of the Bank develop their activity (branches and agencies).

Future minimum rental under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

No later than 1 year 350,577 527,373
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 473,988 1,037,010
Later than 5 years 161,449 580,351

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a member of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. The Bank’s immediate parent is Intesa Sanpaolo
SpA, a bank incorporated in Italy, which directly owns 91.47 % of the ordinary shares.

The related parties considered for reporting purposes include Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., Societe Europeenne
de Banque S.A., Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland, Central-European International Bank, Intesa Sanpaolo
Banka DD Sarajevo, Intesa Sanpaolo Branch Tokyo, Banka Koper, Intesa Sanpaolo Card, Banca CR
Firenze Romania, VUB Banka Bratislava, Vseobecna Uverova Banka AS Branch Praga, Intesa
Mediocredito SpA Milano, Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International S.A. Luxembourg, Intesa Sanpaolo
Leasing Romania, which are all entities controlled by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. Through the
business activities are conducted certain banking transactions with related parties.

These include loans, deposits and foreign currency iransactions, acquisition of other services.

The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year-end, and relating expense and
income for the year are as follows:

Transactions with key personnel of the Bank

Balance as
at 31 Balance as at
December Income 31 December Income
2013 2013 2012 2012
Key management personnel of the
Bank:
Current account 124,375 4312 406,487 4,932
Deposits 1,553,423 63,934 4,257,285 89,142
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The transactions with “key management personnel” represent only transactions related to current accounts
and deposits, excluding any other benefits. The remuneration of key management personnel for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was of RON 1,654,316 (2012: RON 2,716,245)

Transactions with other related parties

Besides transactions regarding “key management personnel”, the Bank performs transactions with entities
which significantly influence the Bank.
In the table below, there are presented the balances and the related interests during the year:

Entities with significant influence on the Amounts owned Amounts owned
Bank: by related parties to related parties

Interest from Interest to Balance at 31 Balance at 31

related parties related parties December December

2013 6,644 28,986,728 20,470,057 1,006,408,494

2012 10,512 45,695,145 11,716,147 1,452,328,648

Amounts due from  Amounts due to
related parties related parties

Interest from Interest due to

related parties related parties 31 December 31 December
Intesa Sanpaolo
Leasing Romania IFN
SA:
2013 2,396,005 143,347 4,465,510 25,233,688
2012 2,198,543 11,652 56,093,271 368,121

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The above mentioned balances arose from the ordinary course of business. The interest charged to and by
related parties is at normal commercial rates. All amounts are expected to be settlcd in cash. QOutstanding
balances at year end are unsecured. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivable or payable. For year ended 31 December 2013 the Bank didn’t book a provision for
doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties. (2012: Nil).

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no events subsequent to the the balance sheet date
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ADMINISTRATORS® REPORT
ON THE ACTIVITY OF BANCA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA
FOR THE YEAR 2013

BANCA COMERCIALA INTESA SANPAOLO ROMANIA SA (the ,.Bank”) is member of the
Intesa Sanpaolo international banking group, resulting from the merger of the bank Intesa with
Senpaolo IMI, two major Italian banks sharing the same values: growh, a better serving of their

clients” needs, the development of the trading companies and the country wealth.

Intesa Sanpaolo is a leading euro-zone banking group, with a capitalization of euro 32.7 bin &s at 31

January 2014 and intends to increase the European banking sector value by means of specific

benchmarking techniques.

Intesa Sanpaolo is leader in ltaly in all activity sectors (retail, corporate and wealth management),
serving 11.1 min customers, by means of approximately 4,800 territorial units countrywide, reaching

at least 13% market share in most regions.

Intesa Sanpaolo has a selective presence in Central and Eastern Europe, in Middle East and North
Africa by means of approximately 1,400 territorial units and 8,4 min customers of the controlléd
banks in 12 countries in the aforementioned areas,

it also has an international network specialized in corporate customers support, operating in 29
countries, especially in the Middle East and North Africa and in the areas recording higher dynamics
of Italian companies, such as the United States, Russia, China and India (source:
www.group.intesasanpaolo.com).

The Board of Directers of Banca Comerciala INTESA SANPACLO ROMANIA S.A. with head
office in Arad, Arad, Bulevardul Revolutiei no. 88, postal code 310025, Arad, Romanie, registered
with the Trade Registry Office belonging to Arad Court under no. J02/82/1996, fiscal code no.
8145422, fiscal status RO, with a subscribed and paid-in share capital of 886.639.410 RON as at
31.12.2013, hereby presents the following management report on the activity carried out
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throughout the year 2013, reflected in the Financia! Statements as at 31.12.2013, prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Union.

The share capital is of 386,639,410 RON and the shareholding structure is as follows:

Intesa Sanpaolo SpA, majority shareholder, holds 81.096.905 shares amounting RON 810.969.050,
representing 91,47% of the share capital of the Bank;

CASSA Di RISPARMIO DI FIRENZE SpA, holds 7.252.825 shares amounting RON 72.528.250,
representing 8,18% of the capital;

INTESA SANPAOLO HOLDING INTERNATIONAL S.A., holds 314,211 shares amounting RON
3.142.110, representing 0,35% of the capital.

The year 2013 was marked by an event with major impact for the Bank, namely the implementation
of a new core banking IT systern, AB-SOLUT®.

The implementation project unfolded throughout the entire year 2013 involving the entire Bank (each
employee, regardless of the type of activity performed). Starting January 2014, Intesa Sanpaolo Bank
beneficiates the entire platform AB-SOLUT®, allowing the Bank to provide its customers with a
quicker response to their needs, significantly increasing the territorial network productivity by the
automation of the work flow and practically removing manual operation errors,
Once with the launching of this more flexible and customizable platform, the Bank will start a range
of projects bringing more benefits to customers, both. by the launching of new products and services,
as well es by the improvement of the existing ones. The core-banking solution is developed by Asseco
SEE Rominia and represents the company’s response to the performance and productivity
requirements on the banking market. The Asseco products portfolio practically covers all the business
areas in the financial scrvices industry, and the staff training allows implementation of solutions that

meet the most exigent demands.

At present, the AB-SOCLUT® Core Banking platform is being used by 10 banks in Romania being the
top-ranking banking system on the local market.

COMMERCIAL ANALYSIS

As at 31.12.2013, depending on the assets volume, the bank’s market share in the banking system rose
from 1.38% (in 2012) to 1.41 % downgrading one position in the banking system (from 15 in 2012 to
16), corresponding to peer group L1,
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Throughout 2013, the Bank continued its territorial network improvement actions and consequently

closed 10 territorial units (7 branches and 3 agencies) hence at the end of the year, the territorial
network consisted of 44 branches, 32 agencies, namely a fotal of 76 units plus the head office, with a
total of 823 employess,

The customers base recorded a descending trend both in terms of individuals and legal customers,
reaching at the year-end a total of 79,464 (-18,332), out of which 65,905 individuals (-14,159) and
13,559 legal persons (-4,173).

The commercial offer of the Bank includes an exhaustive portfolio of financial and banking products
and services addressed to both individuals and legel persons customers.

The commercial activity focused on the increase of the equipment degree (the number of
products/client) and on clients retention, incensed by numerous products edjusting to all clients

categories, regerdless of their age and income.

ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND POSITION
For the presentation by comparison of the bank’s results, for the previsus year, the IFRS financial

statements were used.

The main overall assessment elements for the Bank’s activity in 2013 are as follows:

Indicators: RON/0G0 2013 2012

- netloss -165.384 -105.450
- Return on equity (ROE) -22,76% -11,86%
- Return on assets {ROA) -3,25% -2,08%
- Cost/ Income Ratio 66% 6%
Solvency Indicator (Basel II) 11,89% 15,77%

By careful costs monitoring, the Bank managed to cut operational costs by 7%, but the economical
dificulties, the contraction or cessation of the activity of companies contributed to the continuous
decrease of the credits reimbursement capacity with direct consequences on the credits portfolio

quality generating provisions volume increase by 34%, implicitly impacting profitebility.

The Bank’s results as at 31.12.2013 as compared to the previous year are as follows:
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RON/000 2013 2012
Assets 5.092.627 5.065.672
= Total debts 4.365.931 4.176.627
- Total capitals and reserves 726.696 885.045
Totel liabilities 5.092.627 5.065.672
Net loss -165.384 -105.450

Balanee sheet assets increased by 1% as compared to 2012, and below are the most relevant
positions:
Government bonds portfolio increased by 7%;
- Liquidities in cash and equivalent increased by 7%;
- Placementis with other banks increased by 12%;
credits and claims decreased by 3% following the increase of depreciation adjustments;
tangible fix assets decreased by 7% as a result of the quashing of the refurbishments at the shut

down rented locations.

The Bank’s liabilities increased by 5% as compared to 2012, out of which the relevant positions
recorded the following trends:

- customers deposits increased by 27%;

- debts towards credit institutions went down 30%;

- other positions went up 82%.

Equities went down due to the current year’s loss.

The assets and liabilities of the bank as at 31.12.2013 compared to 2012:

RON/000 31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Cash and current account with central bank 812.099 807.396
Risk management Derivatives 119 316
Placements with banks 144,558 47.552
Securities available for sale 526.912 494,571
Loans and advances to customers 3.444.820 3.549.,269
Equity investments 2.060 8.915
Tangible assets 103.623 111.47¢
Intangible assets 23.165 13.105
Deferred tax assets 15912 13912
Other assets 12.359 17.157
Total assets £.092.627 5.065.672
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Deposits from banks 185.549 575.406
Borrowings from banks 936.045 1.036.600
Customers debts 3.159.092 2.496.387
Risk Management Derivativés 40 366
Subordinated loans 31.445 31.056
Provisions 25.805 19.368
Deferred tax liabilities 730 152
Other liabilities 27.225 17.291
Total liabilities 4.305.931 4,176.626
Share Capital 026.814 0926.814
Share premium 251.629 251.629
Accumulated deficit -482.931 -317.546
Reserves 31.184 28.149
Total equity 726.696 889,046
Total liabilities and equity 5.592.627 5.065.672

The highest weight in total assets is held by the ican portfolio also this year 68%,

Loans increased both in terms of gross value by RON 125,520 ths (3%), but decreased in terms of net
value by RON 104,449 ths (3%) following the impairment adjustments increase by RON 229,969 ths
(34%). The loans depreciation adjustments provide for a 21% coverage at the entire loans portfolio
level,

The bank’s loans activity was driven in 2013 mainly by real estate / mortgage loans. The loans to
individuals increased by 17.6%, in spite of the resirictions within the Prima Casa program - EUR.

The bank’s liquidities, including cash and liquidities with banks recorded a 20% increase as
compared to 31,12,2012, representing 19% roughly in total balance, The most significant weight in
this balance sheet position is held by the minimum legal reserve at NBR, originating in customers’

deposits.

Financial securities and fix assets, classificd AFS, rose by 6.54% as a result of securities purchase
either on the primary market or on the secondary market,

Net tangible assets as at 31 December 2013, went down 7% as a result of amortization and quashing
of refurbishments at the rented locations shut down following the bank’s policy for improved
business. This year no value depreciations were recorded on own premises.

The largest part of the tangible fix assets (88%) is represented by premises and land. Most premises

have been built or modernized recently and are located all aver the country,
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Claims on taxes are relative to the fiscal loss amounting RON 479,278 ths, mainly due to the high

loans provisions of the past years.

The balance sheet liabilities consist of debts and equities,

Customers deposits boosted this year by 27% vs. 15% last year, in spite of the rather difficult market
conditions.

The sources acquired from other banks, more precisely from the Group, record also this year a 30%
decrease as a result of the resources increase on the local market,

The equity went down 18% as a result of the loss recorded at the end of 2013,

The P/L account has also been seriously damaged this year by the large volume of provisions, Loss
increased by RON 59,935 ths (57%) vs 2012 but there will be a descending trend according to the
budget projections for 2014,

The bank’s participation in the sharc capital of Intesa Sanpaclo Leasing IFN has not changed,
remaining RON 8,745 ths. The sharcholding structure is as follows:
Intesa Sanpaolo Romania §,A, holds 597 shares of 1,800 RON/share, representing 99,49% of
the capital;
- CIB Lizing Zrt, holds 3 shares of 1,800 RON/share, representing 0,51% of the share capital,

To be noted that the Bank, from the accounting point of view, in Romania, is exempted from
preparing publishable consolidated financial statements, falling within the scope of item 31 letter b, of
the IFRS Accounting Regulations, approved by NBR Order no 27/2010, in the context of the
cumulative compliance with the conditions at item 32 and 33 of such reguiation,

Since the net assets of the company Intesa Sanpaolo Leasing IFN SA exceeds EUR 10 min, they are
consolidated at Group level using the global method, hence prepares IFRS financial statements.

From prudential point of view, the Bark is under obligation to prepare consolidated financial
statements, complying with NBR Order no. 1/2011 approving the Methodological Norms on the
preparation of the IFRS consolidated financial statements, required to credit institutions for prudential
supervision purposes,

The National Bank of Romania confirmed this position in letter no, IV/2/17971/14,01,2010,

intesa Sanpacic Leasing Romania IFN SA concluded the year 2013 with the following results
prepared in accordance with the Romanian Accounting Standards - Qrder of NBR 27/2011):
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RON/C00 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
- Assets 118.790 €1.044
Total debts 113.451 58.224
Total capitals and reserves 333 2.820
- Total liabilities 118.790 61.044
net Profit / (Loss) 827 -1.472

The financial results of the Bank

The net result of the financial year 2013 is RON 165,384 ths loss.

The bank’s results as compared to the previous year are:

RON/ 000

Net interest margin
Net commissions
Net trading income/ {expenses)

Other operating income
Operating income

Staff expenses

Amortization and depreciation of
tangible, intangible assets and
investment property refated
expenses

Other operational expenses

Total operational expenses

Impairment allowance on leans and
advances to customers

Expenses from disposal of assets
Revenues/ (expenses) from other
provisions

Loss before tax

Income tax revenue

Loss related to the financial year

31 Decempber 2013

148.932
24.952
34977

1.809

210.670

-70.013
-13.801

-56.112
-139.926

-227.464

-1.237
-7.427

-165.384

-165.384

31 December 2012
156.657

21.632

29.831

949

209.119

~76.599
-24.014

-60.494
-161.107

-154.607

345
1.444

-105.450
47

-105.450
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Interest margin decreased by 5% as compared to last year, under the influence of the decreases in

interest rates in the inter-banking market,
Significant increase (15%) is recorded by the results from commissions, due to the increase of the
cash management products (fransactions in national curvency and foreign currency), of the financing

end guarantee commitments.

The adequate deploy of the monetary politics tools (exchange rate, interests,transactions with treasury
bonds) according to the bank’s needs, both in domestic currency, and in foreign currency, led to the
increase by 17% of income from financial operations compared to 2012,

The highest weight in the operational expenses is represented again by the staff related expenses
recording a descending trend: 5% last year and 9% this vear.

Costs recorded a decrease of 7%, revealing better costs management and monitoring for certain
specific activities: renegotiation of rent costs, reduction of telecommunications and mailing costs as
well as of travels costs.

Operational results went up 47%, revealing a valid business mode! and the efficiency of the costs cuts

measures.

Provisions expenses recorded this year increased by 47% as compared to last year, following the re-
assessment of the forecasts of claims recovery from non-performing customers , both in terms of
amounts as wel! as of the recovery required time.

2013 was another year marked by economical dificulties, by a level of population’s trust in the
economy among the iowest in the EU, a difficult market, lacking in appetite for new loans and with
strong competition. Under such circumstances, the Bank attempted to come as close as possible to its
customers, serve them as efficiently and rapidly as possible, without disregarding risk monitoring and

management.

The Bank approaches risk in a prudent manner, complying with its long term strategy.

The risks maragement policies are set with a view to identifying and analyzing the risks the bank is
exposed tc, to setting the adeguate control and risk limits and to monitoring the risks and the
observance of the risk limits.

For better risks management, the Bank seeks consolidation and development of the Risk Management
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Department, having the following main cbjectives:

@ to provide efficient governance of significant risks:

= the development, maintenance and update of the risk governance framework:

* to ensure the supervision and provision of efficacy in the implementation of the policies,
standards and practices in the field of risk management within the Bank;

* to ensure the management and development of the complex processes with a view to
identifying, evaluating, monitoring and mitigating the risks that may impact the Bank’s
objectives;

*  to make sure that the Bank structures comply with the risks control policies and procedures,

with any ather external and/or internal regulations applicabie in the field.

It could be stated that the Bank has to face mainly the credit risk deriving from the default of SMEs as
weil as of the companies operating in the constructions and real estate sector. These sectors high non-
performance rate corroborated with the limited possibilities of rendering valuable the collaterals -
assets and properties- generated provisions increase and therefore credit risk cost. The high number of
such cases required the bank’s reorganization in such a way that specialized structures with adequate
number of employees run by & dedicated executive (Chief Workout Officer) is able to manage nearly
a third of the bank’s portfolio, out of which 75% are insolvent.

The risks management system and policies are subject to periodical revision, in order to comprise the
changes in the market conditions as well as in the products and services offered.

The credit risks analysis and the assessment functions for all business segments are entirely
aggregated and represent a sole reference for the entire Bank.

The Bank is less exposed to other risks, also subject to constant monitoring:

* FX risk, is held under strict control also due to the non trading policy, the
imbalances resulting strictly from other structural causes related to the bank’s

efficiency and clients operations,

* The liquidity risk is also under permanent monitoring and managed both by
tracing the local funding sources from the population and companies and
international institutions, All these, together with the Group extending the
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funding lines and a liquid inter-banking market provide for the necessary

liquidity comfort.

o the interest risk is derived also from structural causes arising mainly from short
term liabilities (deposits) and mostly denominated in the local currency as well as
the existence of medium and short term financing to customers denominated
mostly in foreign currency. This generates in particular a currencies and
maturities gap causing an interest risk generating limits trespassing during 2013;

such gap was regulated and set in line with a new risk appetite,

* The counterparty risk refated to banking institutions is monitored closely on &
daily basis, the bank being involved in deposits placing activities within the
thresholds approved by the group relying on credit analyses; such thresholds are

subject to periodical revision and update,

In terms of its activity, Intesa Sanpaolo Romania is a universal bank serving both individuals
,companies and SMEs.

Following its past years strategy, Intesa Sanpaclo Romania continued in 2013 to support its customers
in finding adequate solutions for their business development, both by constantly updating its products,
and by rendering simpler the work flows with the bank.

By means of an exhaustive offer of commereial services (letters of credit, incasso, international
guarantees, conditioned payment orders, stand-by letters of credit, checques and guarantees) and
Money Gram transfer services, lntesa makes available to its customers both a team of specialists and

also & network of relationships with over 250 corresponding banks in 45 countries.

The Strategy for 2014

The main geals of the Bank for the year 2014 refer in particular to:
> Maintaining a conservative approach in granting credits;
» Intensifying the recovery activity on nonperforming loans;
» restoring the Bank’s profitability
» market share increase

> Intensive commercial development by means of:
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- enhancement and diversification of the customers base;

- Continuing to develop its offer of useful, innovating services, able to improve cross-sefling;

- financing projects related to acquiring EU funds, for projects in the agriculture, energy,
environment, infrastructure fields, etc.;

» Rendering the systems and processes more efficient,

> Consolidation of sensitive counterparts supervision;

» Improvement of the reporting systems for risks monitoring and risk strategy adjustment;

» The provision of added value services io the customers® business by adequate approaches and

sophisticated offers (coverage instruments, structured financing)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The data in the financial statements regarding the closure of the financial year 2013 consider the
accounting organization and running in compliance with Law 82/1991 republished as subsequently
amended and supplemented, NBR Order no, 27/2010 approving the IFRS Accounting Regulations,
applicable to credit institutions as subsequently amended and supplemented.

The Bank meets the conditions stipulated by the law regarding the organization and accurate and up-
to-date accounting , complying with the general accounting principles, in line with the aceruals basis
of accounting.

Operations are acknowledged when preduced and are entered the accounting records chronologically,

based on duly prepared documents,

Preventive financial control is currently deployed, organized in compliance with the legal regulations
and procedures,

The payments 1o the state and local budgets and to the special funds were determined correctly and
the payments were made pursuant to the legal stipulations.

The balance sheet entries match the synthetic accounts trial balance data and express the reality on the
assets and liabilities set relying on the inventory.
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We also mention that the income, expenses and financial results of 2013 are presented accurately in

the profit and loss account.

The patrimony inventory was conducted complying with Accounting Law no, 82/1991 as
subsequently amended and supplemented, with the Emergency Government Ordinance 99/2006 as
subsequently amended and supplemented, with Order 2861/2009 as subsequently amended and
supplemented, the inventory results being capitalized and reflected accurately in the balance sheet.

No events with potential impact on the financial statements for the year 2013 were recorded after the

balance sheet date.

This Report was approved in the Board of Directors meeting held on the 27" of February 2014.

The Administrators of the Bank are:

Giovanni Ravasio — Chairman of the Board of Directors
Ezio Salvai - Administrator

Marina Tabacco — Administrator

Giampiero Trevisan - Administrator

Giulic Ponti - Administrator
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Luca Finazzi — Administrator

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

/
GIOVANl}I’I VASIO
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